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Moss, Levy & Hart~heim LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

City Council of the City of Greenfield 
Greenfield, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type actívities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Greenfield, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles general accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgr~nent, including the assessr~nent of the risks of r~naterial misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of 
Greenfield, as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, for the 
fiscal year then ended in accordance wíth accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis on 
pages 3 through 11, the budgetary information on pages 55 through 61, the schedule of proportionate share of net pension liability on 
page 62, and the schedule of pension contributions on page 63, be presented to supplement the basic financia! statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries of 
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City of 
Greenfield's basic financial statements. The combining nonmajor governmental funds financial statements and combining fiduciary 
funds financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial statements. 

The combining nonmajor funds financial statements and combining fiduciary funds financial statements are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
combining nonmajor funds financial statements and combining fiduciary funds financial statements are fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 6, 2023, on our consideration of the City 
of Greenfield's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on corpliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

rte, ~ ~.~,~.~.~:,~..~P 

Santa Maria, California 
July 6, 2023 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Intr~ductian 

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, management of the City of Greenfield (the 

City) provides the following narrative overview and analysis of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. We 

encourage readers to review this discussion and analysis in conjunction with the City's basic financial statements and the 

accompanying notes to the financial statements, which are available at City Hall and on the City's website (www.ci.greenfield.ca.us). 

Financial Hi~hli~hts 

y The assets and deterred outflows of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and deterred infiaws of resources at fiscal 

year end June 30, 2021 by $71,102,168. This represents a decrease of $1,429,622 from the prior fiscal year. 

As of June 30, 2021, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $24,289,405. This represents 

an increase of $2,225,811 from the prior fiscal year. 

As of June 30, 2021, the unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $4,311,450 or 47% of total General Fund 

expenditures. 

➢ The City employs Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for 

Pensions" (GASB 68) and Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 71, "Pension Transition for Contributions 

Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date — an amendment of GASB Statement 68 (GASB 71). As a result, the City's net 

pension liability was $5,627,600. 

➢ The City adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 72, "Fair Value Measurement and Application" 

(GASB 72). As of June 30, 2021, the City held investments with Level 1 inputs valued at $2,399,120. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

Management's discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements, which includes 

three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. 

This report also contains other supplementary information in additíon to the basic financial statements. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The Government-wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner 

similar to aprivate-sector business. These statements present governmental activities and business-type activities separately and 

contain all assets of the City as well as a!I liabilities (including long-term debt). In addition, certain eliminations, as prescribed by GASB 

Statement No. 34, have occurred with regard to interfund activity, payables and receivables. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on al! of the City's assets and liabilities, and the difference between the two is 

reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 

position of the City of Greenfield is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed during the most recent fiscal 
year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing 
of related cash flows. In other words, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash 

flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes; or earned, but unused vacation leave). 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Fiscal Year Ended tune 30, 2021 

Overview of the Financial Statements (continued) 

The Government-wide Financial Statements characterize functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes and 

intergovernmental revenues as governmental activities, and other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of 

their costs through user fees and charges as business-type activities. The governmental activities of the City include genera! 
government, public works, building and planning, parks and recreation, community development, public safety, and streets and roads. 

The business-type activities of the City include water and sewer utilities. 

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial statements present the 

financial activity of the City, which is the primary government. The City previously had a component unit (the Redevelopment Agency 

of the City of Greenfield} through January 31, 2012, for which the government was considered to be financially accountable. Effective 

February 1, 2012, Assembly Bill AB 1x26, as modified by the California Supreme Court, dissolved redevelopment agencies in California. 

All assets and liabilities were required to be transferred to the corresponding Successor Agency identified in each community. In 
Greenfield, the City became the Successor Agency and holds these assets and liabilities in Private Purpose Trust. See Note 15 (pages 

52 and 53} in the Notes to the Financial Statements, for further details on the Successor Agency. The City has no component units that 

require discrete presentation in accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, as amended by GASB Statements No. 39 and No. 61. 

The Government-wide Financial Statements can be found on pages 12 through 15 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities 
or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 

finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories of activities: governmental funds, 
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the Government-

wide Financial Statements. However, unlike the Government-wide Financial Statements, Governmental Funds Financial Statements 

focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end 

of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of Governmental Funds Financial Statements is narrower than that of Government-wide Financial Statements, it is 

useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities 

in the Government-wide Financial Statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's 

near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, 

expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison of governmental funds to the 

governmental activities. 

The City maintains multiple individual governmental funds. GASB Statement No. 34 requires the City's major funds be identified and 

presented separately in the Governmental Funds Financial Statements. Information for the General Fund is always considered to be a 

major fund and is presented separately in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of 

revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. In addition to the General Fund, the Home Grant Fund, the Traffic Impact Fund, 

the General Facilities Impact Fund, the Housing Fund, the Supplemental Transaction and Use Tax Fund, the Fire Fund, and the Capital 

Projects Fund are reported as major funds. Data from the other (nonmajor) governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated 
presentation in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and 

changes in fund balances. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds are provided in the form of combining 

financial statements in the Supplemental Information section of this report. The Supplemental Information section can be found on 

pages 64 through 73 of this report. 
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MANAGEMENT'S [~ISCUSSIC)N ANa ANALYSIS 
Fiscal Year Ended June 3Q, 2021 

Overview ©f the Financial Statements (e©ntinue~) 

The City adopts an annual appropriations budget for all of its governmental funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been 
provided ín the Required Supplemental Information section, for the General Fund and for the six major special revenue funds. Required 
Supplemental Information for these major funds can be found on pages 55 through f 1 of this report. 

The basic Governmental Funds Financial Statements can be found on pages 1f through 21 of this report. 

Proprietary Eunds 

Proprietary Funds Financial Statements provide the same type of information as the business-type activities in the Government-wide 
Financial Statements, but in more detail. The City maintains two proprietary funds, the Water Fund, and the Sewer Fund. These are 
also known as Enterprise Funds. Each proprietary fund is considered major and is presented individually in the fund financial 
statements. 

The Proprietary Funds Financial Statements can be found on pages 23 through 2E of this report. 

Fiduciary Funds 

The City maintains two fiduciary funds, which are reported as Private Purpose Trust Funds, the Successor Agency Administrative Fund, 
and the Successor Agency Qebt Service Fund. These funds are private-purpose trust funds of the City. The fïduciary funds financial 
statements can be found on pages 27 and 2~ of this report. 

~4c►tes to the Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and 
fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 2~ through S of this report. 

Other Inforrr~atian 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain Required Supplemental 
Information. In addition to budgetary comparison schedules for the General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds found on pages 
5S through f 1, the Required Supplemental Information section also presents net pension liability and contribution schedules, which 
can be found on pages ~2 and ~ of this report. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve as a useful indicator of a government's financial position over time. In the case of the City of 

Greenfield, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $71,102,168 at June 

30, 2021. 

Statement of Net position 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total 

Current and other assets 

Capital assets 

Total assets 

Deferred outflows of resources 

Current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Deferred inflows of resources 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

$ 31,238,877 $ 33,185,668 $ 4,761,972 $ 4,435,645 $ 36,000,849 37,621,313 

33,795,800 33,403,266 17,686,875 18,608,964 51,482,675 52,012,230 

65,034,677 66,588,934 22,448,847 23,044,609 87,483,524 89,633,543 

1,922,874 1,686,308 107,970 152,743 2,030,844 1,839,051 

1,415,398 1,444,429 423,593 659,917 1,838,991 2,104,346 

10,836,699 10,696,589 5,680,536 6,104,427 16,517,235 16,801,016 

12,252,097 12,141,018 6,104,129 6,764,344 18,356,226 18,905,362 

52,977 195,165 2,997 17,857 55,974 213,022 

Net investment in capital assets 28,954,761 27,888,791 10,664,302 11,106,563 39,619,063 38,995,354 

Restricted 30,535,257 29,394,162 - - 30,535,257 29,394,162 

Unrestricted (4,837,541) (1,343,894) 5,785,389 5,308,588 947,848 3,964,694 

Total net position $ 54,652,477 $ 55,939,059 $ 16,449,691 $ 16,415,151 $ 71,102,168 $ 72,354,210 

The largest portion of the City's net position (56%} reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land; infrastructure; buildings and 

improvements; property and equipment), less any related debt still outstanding that was used to acquire those assets. The City uses 
these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's 

investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must 

be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves usually are not used to liquidate these liabilities. 

An additional 43% of the City's net position represents resources subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. Consistent 

with the prior fiscal year, as of June 30, 2021, the City is able to report positive balances in both of these categories of net position, 

for both the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities. 

During the fiscal year, the City's total net position decreased by $1,429,622 over fiscal year 2020-2021. This net decrease was 

comprised of a decrease of $1,464,162 relating to governmental activities and an increase of $34,540 was related to business-type 

activities. information about these changes is summarized on the following page. 

~~ 



Governmental Í-~CtlVitieS ~uSineSS-Ïj/pe /~CtIV1t1e5 Íote~~ 

2©21 202© 2021 2020 2021 2©20 

Program Revenues: 

Charges for services $ 4,385,402 4,227,614 $ 3,88£,412 $ 3,824,905 ~ 8,271,814 ~ 8,052,519 
Operating contributions 

and grants 3,281,382 1,313,454 - - 3,281,382 1,313,464 
Capital ContributiOtls 

and grants 1,246,154 690,904 - - 1,246,154 690,904 
General Revenues: 

Property takes 3,583,763 3,503,585 - - 3,583,763 3,503,585 
©ther taxes 6,283,0E 1 6,033,494 - - 6,283,061 6,033,494 
Qther revenue 421,546 381,957 13,E 18 99,610 435,164 481,567 
Total 19,201,308 16,151,018 3,900,030 3,924,515 23,101,338 2©,©75,533 

Expenses: 

General government 7,905,572 4,583,893 - - 7,905,572 4,583,893 
Public works 484,880 492,434 - - 484,880 492,434 
~3uilding and planning 1,661,439 1,236,314 - - 1,661,439 1,236,314 

Parks and recreation 1,344,283 1,348,378 - - 1,344,283 1,348,378 
Community development 71,440 107,889 - - 71,440 1©7,889 
Public safety 7,979,783 7,026,197 - - 7,979,783 7,026,197 

Streets and roads 1,682,289 1,474,968 - - 1,682,289 1,474,968 

Interest on long-term debt 81,327 58,525 - - 81,327 58,525 
Water - - 1,898,037 1,785,902 1,898,037 1,785,902 
Sealer - - 1,867,469 1,420,912 1,867,469 1,420,912 

Total expenses 21,211,013 16,328,598 3,765,506 3,206,814 24,976,519 19,535,412 

Change in net position (2,009,705} {177,580 134,524 717,701 {1,875,181) 540,121 

Net position-beginning 56,116,639 56,116,639 16,415,151 15,697,450 72,531,790 71,814,089 

Prior period adjustment 545,543 - {99,984} - 445,559 - 

Net position-ending $ 54,652,477 55,939,059 ~ 16,449,691 16,415,151 $ 71,102,168 $ 72,354,210 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Financial Analysis of the City's Funds 

As noted earlier, the City of Greenfield uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 

requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the City's governments! funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable 

resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financial requirements. 

At June 30, 2021, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $24,289,405, an increase of $2,225,811 

in comparison to the prior fiscal year. Unassigned fund balances amounted to $784,455 at June 30, 2021. The remainder of fund 

balance is not available for new spending because it has already been restricted or is non-spendable. 

Genera! Fund —The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At June 30, 2021, the fund balance of the General Fund was 

$6,208,678, of which $1,897,228 (31%) is non-spendable. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it can be useful to compare the 

unassigned fund balance to total fund expenditures. At June 30, the unassigned fund balance was 46.94% of total General Fund 

expenditures. The fund balance of the City's General Fund increased by $1,105,492 during the 2020-2021 fiscal year. 

Changes in fund balances for other major funds are summarized below: 

Home Grant Fund —This special revenue fund accounts for Home Grant loans to eligible citizens for housing rehabilitation and down 

payment assistance. The balance increased by $15,217. 

Traffic impact Fund —This special revenue fund accounts for Traffic Mitigation Development Impact Fees that are paid by developers 

to mitigate the traffic impacts of those developments. The balance increased by $158,683. 

General Facilities Impact Fund —This special revenue fund accounts for General Facilities Development Impact Fees that are paid by 

developers to mitigate the impact of those developments to general government facilities. The balance increased by $27,421. 

Housing Fund —This special revenue fund accounts for the administration of low- and moderate-income housing loan repayments 

from former property tax housing increment, and for related expenditures. The balance increased by $69,546. 

Supplemental Transactions &Use Tax Fund -- On November 3, 2015, a ma jority of Greenfield voters approved the indefinite extension 

of the 1.0% Transactions and Use Tax that had been due to sunset on September 30, 2017 (formerly known as "Measure X"), 

designated as "Measure V." In addition, a majority of Greenfield voters approved at that same election an additional 0.75% 

Transactions and Use Tax for a period of 5 years, designated as "Measure W".This special revenue fund is used to specifically account 

for those revenues received from these Transactions and Use Taxes, as well as the related expenditures of these moneys. The balance 

decreased by $240,220. 

Fire Fund — On July 01, 2018, the City assumed control of fire protection, and created a separate fund. This fund accounts for public 

safety activity in terms of fire administration, prevention, and suppression. This separate fund is specifically intended to make it easier 

for management to analyze the activity occurring in our new Fire Department. Acquiring a County District and establishing a City 
Department is a complex endeavor and City staff wanted to make sure that the costs and efforts were well documented and clear to 

the financial statement reader. The Fire fund (Fund 102 is still a component of the General Fund. At some point in the future, when 

Fire revenues and expenditures normalize, this fund will be rolled into the General Fund (Fund 100). 

Capital Projects Fund —This fund accounts for capital projects that are of a general nature, and that are not funded by grants or 

enterprise revenues. The balance at June 30 decreased $2,967,859 to $2,817,857. 

Proprietary Funds 

The City's two enterprise funds provide the same type of information found in the Government-wide Financial Statements, but in 

more detail. Highlights of the annual activity for these funds have been presented above, in the discussion of business-type activities. 

~~. 



Financial Analysisof the pity`s Funds (eont~nuedj 

[~ebt Administratlan  

At the end of the fiscal year, the City had total governmental actívities long-term liabilities Outstanding of X10,835,699. This represents 
an increase of $140,110 from the prior fiscal year balance. At the end of the fiscal year, the City also had total business-type activities 
long-term liabilities Outstanding of X5,080,535. In total, the City's long-term liabilities decreased by $283,781. Additional information 
on the City's long-term 1'rabilities can be found in Note 7 on pages 42 through 44, and in Note 8 on page 45 of this report. The City's 
pen,son plan ~s d,scussed sn Note ~.~. 4n pages 46 through 50. I`olloV~~ng ~j a table sumr~ar~~~ng the City's 4utstandéng long=terrn 
liabilities: 

schedule of CJutstanding ~©ng-Term Liablities 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total 

2421 2424 2421 2424 2421 2424 

Loan payable $ - $ - $ 3,847,922 $ 3,988,914 $ 3,847,922 3,988,914 

Cap"rtal lease payable 4,841,439 5,514,475 1,571,379 1,492,299 6,412,418 7,246,774 

IUet pension liability 5,326,365 4,625,645 341,235 423,218 5,627,640 5,448,823 

Compensated absences 669,295 556,549 - - 669,295 556,549 

$ 14,836,699 $ 14,696,589 ~ 5,684,536 $ 6,144,427 16,517,235 16,841,016 

Cash ianagernent 

To obtain flexibility in cash management, the City employs a pooled cash system. Under the pooled cash concept, the City invests idle 
cash in certain eligible securities as constrained by law. Please see Note 3, on pages 35 through 38, for additional discussion of the 
City's cash and investments. 

Capital Assets 

The capital assets of the City are those assets that are used in the performance of the City's functions, including infrastructure assets. 
At dune 30, 2421, the City's investment in capital assets for its governmental activities and business-type activities totaled $33,795,804 
and 17,86,875 net of accumulated depreciation), respectively. (wring the current fiscal year, the City's net decrease 'rn capital assets 
was $529,555. 

The table on the following page presents summary information on the City's capital assets. 

0 



Final Budget Actual 
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Variance 

Positive 

{Negative} 
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FinanciaE Analysis. of the pity's Funds (c©ntinued) 

schedule ©t capital Assets 

Governments! Activities Business-Type Activities Talal 

2021 2020 2022 2020 2021 2020 

Land ~ 6,588,665 ~ 6,588,665 $ 328,537 $ 323,537 $ 6,912,202 $ 6,912,202 

CI P 216,$96 142,669 338,246 331,258 555,142 473,927 

Bl dg a nd improvements 30,487,287 29,006,415 - - 30,487,287 29,006,415 

i'roperty ~ equi pment 5,~~b,~01 4,~~~,~526 3U,163,144 ~U,t~U~3,597 35,7y9,445 34,98,423 

Infrastructure 9,241,151 10,16f,318 - - .9,241,151 10,166,318 

Total capital assets 52,©70,300 50,893,893 30,924,927 30,663,392 82,995,227 81,557',285 

Accum dep ~18,274,50ú~ {17,490,627) {13,238,052) X12,054,428} $ X31,512,552) {29,545,055) 

Net capital assets ~ 33,795,800 33,403,266 17,686,875 18,608,964 $ 51,482,675 $ 52,012,230 

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Itlote 5 on pages 40 and 4~1 of this report. 

General Fund Eudgetary Highlights 

As mentioned above, a detailed budgetary comparison schedule for the fiscal year ended June 3~, 2fl21 is presented in the Required 
Supplementary Information section. The final budget amounts are different from those presented in the 2120-21 original budget 
document. Thïs is due to changes that Occurred after the time that the budget was prepared. The following summarizes the original 
and final budgets, compared with actual results for 2020-21. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

General Fund 

Revenues 

Expenditures 

C}ther Sources {Uses} 

Fund Balance, beginning 

Fund Balance, ending ~ 5,526,034 ~ 5,821,?60 ~ 6,208,6i8 ~ 386,~18 

Revenues were $1,{Jí6,518 below estimates. This less than favorable outcome was due primarily to the impact of CCJVI[~-1.9 especially 
in the cannabis industry. Actual expenditures were ~?6,45Q less than budgeted. Thïs is a reflection of lower than expected spending, 
primarily in the categories of general government, public safety, and housing. 

Economic Factors and the dud et -- l.c~a► kin Fa►rward 

Greenfield is experiencing gains in the local economy, as its sales tax, property tax and development revenues continue to grow. The 
cannabis tax revenues have decreased with an expected shake-out in industry members before it stabilizes, hopefully in FY21-22. With 
interest rates at record lows, we believe growth in property tax and sales tax to be sustainable. With the fallout fr©m the worldwide 
C~VIa-19 event continuing, every local jurisdiction has been hit with trying to recover service levels far customary city services, but 
also contribute to historical expendïtures such as behavioral health, mental health, and educational expenses. Nevertheless, the City 
embraces this challenge, and has taken additional action to ensure that efforts continue to move the community ín the direction given 
by the City Council. 

~ 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Economic Factors and the Budget —Looking Forward (continued) 

➢ Like last year, local property values are projected again to show another incremental increase in the corning fiscal year, 

benefitting the General Fund. Property values continue their recovery, and commercial development is experiencing gradual 

growth, especially in the commercial sector with the continued building of the cannabis industry properties, as well as 

residential and commercial business space. 

➢ The continued development of the cannabis industry is slow and somewhat erratic but is developing positively over time. 

There has been ashake-out in the industry that has affected Greenfield and other localities in that less liquid cannabis 

vp~ràtivn5 have nvt been àbie tv be SiiStai nabie. vv~c ~~iciicve this tv be à nvriiài ~~ nevv iidüJtr y" etr'eit, aiid thàt ~viti  i  ti ie 

quality infrastructure built in Greenfield, sustainable operators will be able to utilize this infrastructure to build profitable 

businesses. Additionally, as was mentioned last year, as the industry develops and maximizes its potential, we expect the 

industry members to pressure all government agencies to lower tax rates. 

➢ With commercial property annexations on the north and south, and a residential annexation on the west side of Greenfield, 

geographically Greenfield is growing. This growth means several things. One is that the property tax base of the City will be 
growing, which means more General Fund revenue. Second, with commercial development (on the north, south and east 

sides of town) comes addition permit fees, sales taxes, impact fees and transient occupancy taxes. These additional revenues, 

along with the cannabis industry fees and taxes, will form the base over the next few years for much of the future economic 

development in the City of Greenfield. 

➢ As mentioned last year, the COVID-19 event continues to have widespread financial impact in 2020-2021. These financial 

impacts have not hit the City of Greenfield quite as hard as other municipalities. Moving forward from the pandemic, we 

expect to pursue the same strategic plan that we have followed in the recent past, with the additional expense of offering 

the Greenfield public more community outreach. This will take the form of grant funds that have been passed through to us 
from the United Way for rent and utility payments for low-income residents, additional help for crime victim counseling and 

a stronger city-wide emphasis on recreational services, especially for our youth. 

➢ The federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES) authorized direct payments to individuals, rebates to 

families with children, and extended unemployment benefits for laid-off workers. The city of Greenfield will use this money 

to offset expenses that we have incurred that have been specifically caused by the COVID event. Additionally, the American 

Recovery Plan Act  (ARPA)  has designated $4.2M to Greenfield for rebuilding after COVID. We have been notified that we are 

to receive this money over two years (FY21-22 and FY22-23). We have accrued the first half into this year, as required by the 

GASB. 

The FY2021-22 Budget will again be a collaborative effort that will take these indicators and other future events into consideration. It 

will again reflect steady and consistent spending for enhanced services that will be supported by strengthening revenues. Again, this 
year, the easing of the economy due to COVID-19, in combination with revenues that will come from future development, will likely 

allow for somewhat greater flexibility in formulating the budget (due to added spending capacity from  ARPA  funds availability). This 
Budget is expected to bean effective plan that will continue to uphold the goals of the City Council and will likely continue the gradual 

expansion of the City's core services, especially in the FY2021-22 year. 

Contacting the City's Financial Management Team 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a general overview of the 

financial position of the City of Greenfield and to show the City's accountability for the money it receives. Questions concerning any 

of the information provided in this report, or requests for additional financial information, should be addressed to the City of 

Greenfield, Finance Department, P.O. Box 127, 599  EI  Camino Real, Greenfield, California 93927. 

11 



~IT~ +Q~ CREEI~FIE![~ 
STATEMENT {JF NET POSITIC)N 
J u n e 30, 2021 

governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments $ 14,349,524 $ 5,692,164 ~ 20,041,688 
Accounts receivable, net 4,673,965 710,8fl5 5,384,770 

interest receivable 8,493 2,275 10,768 
Notes receivable 9,603,096 - 9,603,496 

Prepaid eXpense5 1,527 - 1,527 

Inventory-land held for resale 959,040 - 959,440 
Internal balances 1,643,272 (1,643,272 - 

Cap~tal assets. 

Land 6,588,665 323,537 6,912,2fl2 

Construction in progress 216,896 338,246 555,142 

C~epreciable: 

Building and impr©VementS 34,487,287 - 3fl,487,287 

Property and equipment 5,536,341 34,263,144 35,799,445 
Infrastructure 9,241,151 - 9,241,151 

Accumulated depreclatlon {18,274,544] ~13,238,fl52) {31,512,552) 

Total assets 65,034,677 22,44$,847 87,4$3,524 

C}EFERREI3 E~UTI~~.t~wS CAF RESE~~RCE 
Lass on refunding 13,763 - 13,763 

Related to pensions 1,909,111 ~_47,97fl 2,017,fl81 

Total deferred outflows of res©urces 1,922,874 107,974 2,fl30,844 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
12 



$ 892,2~i5 $ 

497,145 

145,988 

699,99E 

4,849,428 

12,252,997 

143,917 $ 1,995,882 

37,944 445,989 

49,979 49,979 

192,953 338,941 

398,932 977,938 

5,971,269 9,911,697 

391,235 5,627,699 

6,194,129 18,35f,226 

~1~ ~~ ~~~CN~~~~~ 

STATEMENT C3F NET Pt3SlTlaIV (Continued] 

lune 39, 2921 

~a©Vernmental 9usiness-Type 

Activíties Total 

LIAEiiItTIES 

Accounts payable 

Accrued payroll 

Accrued interest payable 

C~eposits 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Clue within one year 

due in mare than one year 

Net pe~isíc~n liability 

Total liabilities 

aEFERREE~ fN~~.t~ws t~~ RESC~► URCES 

Related to pensions 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

NET PC~SITEt)N 

Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted for: 

Housing 

Community development 

Publíc safety 

Streets and roads 

Building and planning 

debt servïce 

Public works 

Parks and recreation 

Unrestricted 

Total net position 

52,977 

52,977 

2,997 55,974 ~ 

2,997 55,974 

~ ~ ° ~ • ` ~~~~ 12,397,574 41,252,335 

- 19,725,784 

- 383,192 

- 1,923,499 

- 2,414,929 

- 4,969,953 

- 535,985 

9,745,9X1 

- 744,923 

~ 54,652,477 $ 16,449,691 $ 71,192,168 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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+Cli`~ flE ~REENFIEi.a 
STATEMENT 4F ACTIVITIES 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June ~~, 2021 

Governmental activities: 

General government 

Public works 
Building and planning 

Parks and recreation 

Community development 

Public safety 

Streets and reads 

Interest on long-term debt 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 

i~/ater 

Sewer 

Total business-type activities 

Total primary government 

Pr©gram Revenues 
(Jperating Capital 

Charges for Contributions Contributions 

Expenses Services and Grants and Grants 

~ 7,905,572 $ 61,323 $ 2,320,869 $ - 

484,880 4,112,029 - 727,679 

1,661,439 - - - 

1,344,283 41,725 1$1,662 - 

71,440 36,001 550,328 518,475 
7,979,783 134,324 228,523 - 

1,682,289 - - - 

81,327 - - - 

21,211,013 4,385,402 3,281,382 1,246,154 

1,89$,037 2,341,062 - - 

3,765,506 3,886,412 - - 

r- - r -  -- ~- -r-- -r-- - : -r---r--- ,p. ...,~ ....,...... . 

General Revenues 

Taxes: 

Secured and unsecured property taxes 

Sales and use tax 

Transient lodging tax 

Franchise taxes 
Business license tax 

Investment income 

Either 

Total general revenues 

Change in net position 

Net position -beginning of fiscal year 

Prior-period adjustments 

Net position -beginning of fiscal year, restated 

Net position -end of fiscal year 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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~1et {Expense} Revenue and Changes in iUet Position 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

$ {5,523,3SÚ} $ - ~ {S,523,38ú) 

4,354,828 - 4,354,828 

{1,íS1,439} - {1,651,439) 

{1,120,895} - {1,120,895} 

1,033,364 - 1,033,354 

{7,61í,93S} - {7,515,935} 
t~ ~~~ ~R41 _ (~ ~st~ ~st41 

{12,298,075) - {12,298,075} 

- 443,025 443,025 

- {322,119} (322,110} 

- 120,905 120,905 

{12,298,075} 120,905 {12,177,169} 

3,583,753 - 3,583,763 

6,Ú7'7,80S - 5,077,8ÚS 

13,446 - 13,446 

164,256 - 164,266 

27,544 - 27,544 

86,270 13,618 99,888 

33S,2ú6 - 335,276 

1Ú,288,37O 13,618 1O,3Ú1,988 

{2,009,705} 134,524 {1,875,181} 

55,939,fl59 16,415,151 72,3S4,21ú 

723,123 {99,984} 623,139 

56,662,182 16,315,167 72,977,349 

54,652,477 $ 16,449,691 $ 71,102,168 
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CiT~ QF ~REENF~ELD 
~QVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

BALANCE SHEET 

June 34, X121 

Special Revenue Funds 

General 

Traffic Facilities 

Home Grant Impact Impact Housing 

General Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments $ 344,241 $ 163,24$ 1,446,445 $ 33,198 $ 146,131 

Accounts receivable, net 3,442,292 - - - - 

Interest receivable 726 84 1,634 12 39 

Notes receivable - 6,124,615 - - 3,429,881 

Prepaid expenditures 1,527 - - -  - 

Que  from other funds 1,646,12$ - 3,452,378 - - 

inventory--band held for resale - - - - 959,444 

Advances receivable 1,$95,741 - - - - 

Total assets $ 7,254,575 ~ 6,2$7,947 $ 4,460,453 $ 33,214 ~ 4,495,451 

llABll171ES, DEFERRED IiVFL©U!!S ©F RES©URGES, 

AND FUMD BALANCES 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable $ 69fl,535 $ - - $ - $ - 

Accrued payroll 245,374 - - - - 

Qeposits 145,9$8 - - -  - 

Que  to other funds - - - - - 

Advances payable - - - 1,$95,741 - 

Total liabilities 1,441,$97 - - 1,$95,741 - 

Qeferred Inflows of Resources 

Unavailable revenues - 6,124,615 - - 3,429,$81 

Total deferred inflows of resources - 6,124,615 - - 3,429,$81 

Fund Balances 

Nonspendable 

Prepaid expenditures 1,527 - - - - 

Advances receivable 1,$95,741 - - - - 

Inventory - - - - 959,444 

Restricted 

Public safety - - - - - 

Housing - 163,332 - - 146,174 

Community development - - - - - 

Streets and reads - - - - - 

Building and planning - - 4,464,453 - - 

Qebt service - - - - - 

Publicworks - - - - - 

Parks and recreation - - - - - 

Unassigned 4,311,454 - - (1,$62,491) - 

Total fund balances (deficits) 6,24$,678 163,332 4,464,453 (1,$62,491) 1,465,174 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, 

and fund balances $ 7,254,575 $ 6,2$7,947 $ 4,464,453 $ 33,214 $ 4,495,451 

The n©tes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Special Revenue Funds 

Supplemental 

Transactions and Usher T©sal 

Use Tax Fire Capital Projects G©vernmental G©vernmental 

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds 

$ 1,668,681 $ - $ 1,756,392 $ 9,917,628 ~ 14,349,524 

640,033 185,629 - 278,511 4,545,865 

467 - 1,192 4,343 8,493 

- - - 48,606 9,663,696 

- - - - 1,527 

- - 1,168,186 1,257,627 7,623,719 

- - - - ~~ ~, ~~~ 

- - - 1,643,272 3,538,973 

$ 1,709,181 $ 185,629 ~ 2,859,770 ~ 13,149,381 $ 40,630,197 

$ 3,352 $ 14,649 $ 41,913 ~ 59,936 ~ 809,785 

126,659 51,714 - 13,755 397,502 

- - - - 145,988 

- 1,606,128 - 1,282,592 2,888,726 

136,611 1,671,891 41,913 1,356,283 6,137,696 

- - - 48,666 9,663,696 

- - - 48,666 9,603,696 

- - - - 1,527 

- - - - 1,895,761 

- - - - 959,66fl 

1,579,176 - - 435,226 2,614,396 

- - - - 269,562 

- - - $62,922 $62,922 

- - - 2,414,920 2,414,920 

- - - - 4,660,653 

- - - 535,086 535,086 

- - 2,817,857 6,929,063 9,746,926 

- - - 744,923 744,923 

- (1,486,862} - (177,642} 784,455 

1,579,176 { 1,486,862 } 2,817,857 11,744,498 24, 289,465 

$ 1,709,181 ~ 185,029 $ 2,859,770 $ 13,149,381 $ 40,030,197 

17 



• ,~ ~ ~ ~ ;, ~ 



CITY OF GREENFIELD 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS -BALANCE SHEET 

TO TH E STATEM ENT OF NET POSITION 

June 30, 2021 

$ 24,289,405 Total fund balances -governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are 

different because: 

In governmental funds, only current assets are reported. In the statement of net position, 

all assets are reported, including capital assets and accumulated depreciation: 

Capital assets at historical cost $ 52,070,300 

Accumulated depreciation (18,274,500) 

Net 

(r .•r n • • .~ v v~ vva n r ~ n 1 ~ ~ ~ r. ri ~ r n • . n .•. ~ ~ n  i  n ~ n .•. n .e r.  i  ~ n ~ .•~ ... I • ~- ~ %- 6-... .~ • . s. .-.. n  i.  J- L... a- . I .-. I.-• I .~ 
III ~VVCI I II I ICI IIQI I  UI  IUJ, 1 CVCI IUC IJ I CI.V~I IILCU V111}! lV ll IC C1(lCl Il ll Idl IJ dVd11dIJIC, 

meaning it will be collected soon enough after the end of the period to finance 

expenditures of that period. Receivables for revenues that are earned but unavailable 

are deferred until the period in which the revenues become available. In the government-

wide statements, revenue is recognized when earned, regardless of availability. 

The amount of unavailable revenues that were deferred in governmental funds, but 

are recognized in the government-wide statements, is: 

In governmental funds, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to 

pensions are not reported because they are applicable to future periods. 

In the statement of net position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources 

relating to pensions are reported. 

In governmental funds, only current liabilities are reported. In the statement of 

net position, all liabilities, including long-term liabilities are reported. Long-term 
liabilities relating to governmental activities consist of: 

33,795,800 

9,603,096 

1,856,134 

Capital leases payable $ 4,841,039 

Net pension liability 5,326,365 

Compensated absences payable 669,295 

(10,836,699) 

13,763 

(4,069,022) 

$ 54,652,477 

Total 

In governmental funds, loss on refunding is recognized as an expenditure in the 

period incurred. In the government-wide statements, foss on refunding is 

amortized over the life of the debt. 

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of risk management, 

vehicle and equipment replacement, informational technology, human resources, and 

health insurance to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the Internal Service 

Fund are included in the governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position. 

(Not including the $924,045 in capital assets reported above.) 

Total net position -governmental activities 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Traffic 

Home Grant Impact 

General Fund Fund Fund 

~ ~, Ibt,lyl ~ - ~ - ~ 

548,925 - - 

1,911 - - 

8,386 557 14,443 

495,494 - - 

3, 258,948 14,554 148,644 

146,347 - - 

14,327,259 15,217 158,583 

General 

Facilities 

Impact Housing 

Fund Fund 

- $ - 

144 19,546 

77.?R1 S~ ~~ra 

li,~z1 ~y,5~6 

CITY f~~ GREENFIEl~►  
GQVERNMENTA~ FUNDS 

STATEfVIENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

Far the Fiscal Year Ended lone 3fl, 2Q21 

Special Revenue Funds 

~~vENUEs 
Taxes and assessments 

Licenses and permits 

Fines and penalties 

Use of money and property 

Intergovernmental revenues 

Charges for services 

Other revenues 

Total revenues 

EXPENi.~!ITURES 

Current: 

General government 

Public works 

Building and planning 

Parks and recreation 

Community development 

Public safety 

Streets and roads 

Housing 

Capital outlay 

Debt service: 

Principal 

Interest 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over sunder) 

expenditures 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances {deficits), beginning of fiscal year 

Prior-period adjustment 

Fund balances deficits), beginning of fiscal year -restated 

Fund balances {deficits), end of fiscal year  

3,534,211 - - - - 

51,857 - - - - 

1,551,439 - - - - 

488, 343 - - - - 

2,797,255 - - - - 

366,891 - - - - 

178,474 - - - - 

9,188,455 - - - - 

1,138,793 15,217 158,583 27,421 59,545 

1,13$,793 15,217 158,583 27,421 59,545 

b, lU~, lç5b 14t~,115 ~,yU"l,~ IU (1,~~3y,ylL j yy5,b14 

{33,341) 

5,459,885 148,115 3,941, 374 ~ 1,889,912) 995,624 

~ b,lUtS,blti ~ 1b~,3.~L ~ 4,UbU,U53 ~ (1,25bL,~Fy1) ~ l,Ubb,llU  

The nfltes t© basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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Special Revenue Funds 

Supplemental 

Transactions and C3ther Total 

( IsA flax Fire ('anital RrniPrtt f-~nu€~rnm~ntal f-~nv~rnm~ntal 

~ 1,~14,lbU ~ 1,114,!/1 ~ 

1,975 - 

2,926,735 1,186,426 

~ `J`'~L, 11~ ~ 1U,41~,53 ~ 

- - 648,925 

- - ~,~~~ 

6, 804 39,139 86, 700 

- 2,644,973 3,140,463 

- ~S1 77~ ~ R~,1 1 S~ 

6,804 3,588,598 18,306,689 

- - - - 3,634,211 

- - - 392,692 454,549 

- - - - 1,661,439 

217, 529 - - 412,070 1,117,942 

71,440 - - - 71,440 

2,877,986 1,763,243 - 33,692 7,472,176 

- - - 178,890 545, 781 

- - - - 178,470 

- - 156,806 - 156,806 

rJ7~.~~i~ ~%~_43~7 

3,166,955 1,763,243 156,806 1,772,107 16,047,577 

{240,220} {576,817} {150,002} 1,816,491 2,259,112 

{240,220) {576,817} {150,002} 1,816,491 2,259,112 

1,819,390 {910,045} 2,967,859 9,928,007 22,063,594 

{33,301} 

1,819,390 {910,045) 2,967,859 9,928,007 22,030,293 

$ 1,579,170 $ {1,486,862} $ 2,817,857 $ 11,744,498 $ 24,289,405 
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1r.~  i  I ~~ ~r7I1G~~~G~D 

RECONCILIATICiN OF THE G{)VERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT t~F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BAI-ANCES TC~ THE STATEMENT t~F ACTIVITIES 
Fvr the Fiscal Year Ended June 34, 2421 

Net change in fund balances - governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are 
different because: 

In governmental funds, capital outlays are reported as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities, the cyst of these assets are allocated over their estimated 
useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which additions tv capital 
outlay of $4$2,895 was less than depreciative expense {2,15,934) in the period: 

In governmental funds, the issuance or proceeds of long-term notes receivable 
provides current financial resources and therefore, are recognized as expenditures 

or revenues, respectively. in the government-wide statements, issuance or 

proceeds are reported as increases or reductions in assets, respectively. This 

amount is the net change in Ivng-term notes receivable; 

In governmental funds, pension cysts are recognized ~nrhen employer contributions are 
made. In the statement of activities, pension costs are recognized vn the accrual basis. 
This fiscal year, the difference between accrual-basis pension costs and actual employer 
contributions was: 

In governmental funds, repayments of Ivng-term debt are reported as expenditures. 

In the government-wide statements, repayments of long-term debt are reported as 
reductions of liabilities. 

!n the government-wide statements, any deferred Ivss from debt refunding is amortized as 

interest ever the life of the debt. Amortization of deferred Ivss from debt refunding, for the 
period is 

In the statement of activities, compensated absences are measured by the amounts 
earned during the fiscal year. In governmental funds, expenditures for these items 

are measured by the amount of financial resources used (essentially the amount 
paid). This fiscal year, compensated absences earned exceeded the amount used by: 

Internal Service Funds are used by management tv charge the cysts of risk management, 
vehicle and equipment replacement, infarmativnal technology, human resources, and 

health insurance to individual funds. The net expense {excluding capital asset activity 
reported above) of the internal service funds is reported within governmental activities. 

Change in net position -governmental activities 

~ 2,259,112 

~1.,743,035) 

(74,549) 

~318,889) 

673,436 

{3,117) 

{112,786) 

~2,729,877) 

$ {2,449,745) 

The notes tv basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
~ 



CITY CAF ~REENFIEi.D 
PRC3PRIETARY FUN[3S 

STATEMENT t3F NET Pt3SITIC3N 
June 30, 2021 

Governmental 

Activities 

Internal 
UVater Fund Sewer Fund Totals Service Fund 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments $ 4,342,098 $ 1,35Q,O66 $ 5,692,164 $ - 
Accounts receivable, net 584,597 176,2(38 71O,8Ú5 128,1úQ 
Interest receivable 1,733 542 2,275 - 

Totol Current assets 4,878,428 1,526,816 6,405,244 128,100 

Capital assets: 

Land 265,409 58,128 323,537 - 
Construction in progress 338,246 - 338,246 - 
Propertyand equipment 13,861,832 16,401,312 3Q,263,144 1,107,981 
Tr~st~ ~ r~r+ ~~ ~ 4 ,~ cce~c ~v~ R ~, hs~e,ca~ .aa v.~ ~ rt ~ 6~ n ~-~ s•-t~,~t ..r,-rvr 

7 ~ A in ,~~ n .~. ,~t..~.r+,rt~reJ -z n ~-~ n 97~ ..2 V, tom, ~! 1 n-~ n ~ 1.,1V/,~8i 

Less accumulated depreciation ~6,297,713~ {6,940,339 ~13,238,Q52~ X183,936) 
Total copítol assets {net ©~ 

accumulated depreciations 8,167,714 9,519,1Q1 17,686,875 924,045 
Total assets 13,Q46,2Q2 11,Q45,917 24,Q92,119 1,Q52,145 

DEFERRED 9UTFLC)WS OF RESt3URCE5 
Related to pensions 59,444 48,526 1Q7,97Q - 

Total deferred outflows of resources 59,444 48,526 1Q7,97Q - 

~tAaruT~Es 
Current Nobilities: 

Accounts payable 53,371 90,246 143,617 52,48Q 
Accrued payroll 20,93Q 17,Q14 37,944 9,643 
Accrued interest payable 29,552 20,427 49,979 - 
ServiCe deposits 103,413 88,640 192,053 - 
©ue to other funds - - - 4,134,999 
Noncurrent Nobilities due within one year 231,733 76,299 308,032 - 

Totoi Current Nobilities 438,999 292,626 731,625 4,197,122 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Advances payable 761,403 881,869 1,643,272 - 
Net pension liability 165,848 135,387 301,235 - 
Capltal leases payable 1,45Q,Q36 - 1,45Q,Q36 - 
Notes payable 2,141,244 1,479,989 3,621,233 - 

Total noncurrent liabilities 4,518,531 2,497,245 7,015,776 - 
Total NobiNties 4,957,530 2,789,871 7,747,401 4,197,122 

DEFERRED INFLE~U1lS 4F RESt)URCES 
Related to pensions 1,650 1,347 2,997 - 

Total deferred inflows of resources 1,650 1,347 2,997 - 

Net investment in Capital assets 3,583,358 7,080,944 10,664,302 924,045 
Unrestricted 4,563,108 1,222,281 5,785,389 (4,069,022} 

Total net position $ 8,146,466 8,303,225 $ 16,449,691 ~ {3,144,977] 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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CiïY ~F GREENFIEl.© 
PROPRIETARY FUNQS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, ANQ CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 34, 2421 

Governmental 

ACt'rvitÍeS 

Internal 

Water Fund Sewer Fund Totals Service Fund 

t.~PERATING REVENUES: 
Charges for services 
Connection fees 

Contributions 

Other operating revenues 

Total operating revenues 

QPERATING EXPENSES: 

.~ialar ieS and be: ~efit~ 

Office expense 

Contractual services 

Utilities and communications 

Operating supplies 

Vehicle and equipment maintenance 
Professional development 

Insurance 

Other 

©eprecïation 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income {loss} 

N{)N-4PERATINC REVENUES EXPENSES) 
Interest income {loss) 

Interest expense 

Total non-operating revenues expenses} 

Change in net position 

Net position -July 1 

Prior-period adjustments 

Net position -July 1, restated 

Net position -June 34 

$ 2,341,948 $ 1,545,354 $ 3,847,298 $ - 

38,364 - 38,364 - 

- - 1,419,663 

754 - 754 128,131 

2,341,462 1,545,354 3,886,412 1,147,794 

494,84i 444,436 894,837 662,4J.6 

22,664 4,514 27,178 283 

322,246 661,735 983,941 13,626 

163,446 77,817 241,263 23,534 

145,268 32,651 137,919 157,788 

27,547 32,194 59,741 235,876 

4,834 2,913 7,743 47,855 

- - - 2,414,448 

1,447 6,745 8,152 - 

587,468 566,772 1,154,244 111,699 

1,725,597 1,785,377 3,514,974 3,663,125 

615,465 (24©,027} 375,438 {2,515,331) 

11,414 2,648 13,618 (156) 

{172,444} ~82,492} (254,532} - 

~161,434} ~79,484} (244,914} (156} 

454,435 ~319,511) 134,524 (2,51S,487) 

7,797,266 8,617,8$5 16,415,151 - 

{144,835) 4,851 {99,984} (629,494} 

7,692,431 8,622,736 16,315,167 ~629,494j 

$ 8,146,466 $ 8,343,225 $ 16,449,691 ~ ~3,144,977} 

fibs  nates  to basic fïnancial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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CITY C}~ ~REENFIELa 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Far the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Governmental 
Activities 

Internal 
Water Fund Sewer Fund Totals Service Fund 

CASH FLOWS FROM ©PERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Receipts from customers ~ 2,206,166 $ 1,545,272 $ 3,751,43$ $ 1,019,694 

Payments to suppliers {752,477] {9í0,894j {1,713,367] {2,932,11$] 

Payments to employees {541,474] {427,914] {969,384] {658,685] 

Net cash provided {used] by operating activities 912,215 156,472 1,468,6$7 {2,571,149] 

CASH FLOWS FR©M CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 

Acquisition of capital assets {121,757] {214,379] {332,136] (326,4$9] 
Principal payments on 1Qn~-term debt 

~% (227-4391 1 !~ d (73 969 1 7~ t (~01 g0R1 !~ !~ d - 
Interest paid on long-term debt {173,$46] {$3,063] (256,949] - 
Advancesfrom other funds {11.1,244) {66,720) {177,924] - 

Net cash used by capital and related fïnancing activities {634,742] {434,131] {1,068,$73} (326,4$9] 

CASH FLt3WS FR©M NC~NCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Transfers to other funds - - - 4,134,999 

Net cash {used] by noncapital financing activities - - - 4,134,999 

CASH FLOWS FR{)M INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

Interest income {loss] 1$,542 5,753 24,255 - 

Net cash provided {used] by tnvest~ng activ~ties 1$,502 5,753 24,255 - 

Net increase {decrease] in cash and cash equivalents 295,975 {271,946) 24,069 1,237,801 

Cash and cash equivalents -July 1 4,046,123 1,621,972 5,66$,095 - 

Prior-period adjustment - - - {1,237,$01] 

Cash and cash equivalents -July 1, restated 4,04£,123 1,621,972 5,66$,095 {1,237,801] 

Cash and cash equivalents -June 30 $ 4,342,498 $ 1,350,066 5,692,164 $ - 

RECC~NCILIATI©N OF CASH ANa INVESTMENTS TD THE 
STATEMENT C)F NET Pt3SITIÚN: 

Cash and investments ~ 4,342,498 $ 1,354,066 $ 5,692,164 $ - 

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 4,342,098 ~ 1,350,466 $ 5,692,164 $ - 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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c~~vo~ ~~EE~~r~~r~ 
PROPRIETARY FUN©S 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended tune 36, 2621 

Water Fund Sewer Fund 

Governmental 
Activities 

Internal 
Totals Service Fund 

Reconciliation of operating income ~loss~ to 
net cash provided by operating activities: 

Operating income {loss) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income ~ioss~ 

to net cash provided fused) by 

C~epreciation expense 

Change in assets deferred outflows, liabilities, 
and deferred inflows: 
Rerei~,,ahleç~ rapt 

Prepaid expenditures 

deferred outflows 

Accounts payable 

Accrued payroll 
Net pension liability 
Deferred inflows 

Net cash provided fused) by operating activities 

~ 61s,465 ~ {246,627j ~ 375,43 $ {2,515,331.} 

587,468 566,772 1,154,246 111,699 

(1 ~4 .st+4~1 9+.w ,v.+rv~ (7s21 `, vj (1 ~4 ~ai41 ~...,.. ,... 1 
(1 ?S2 1(~tll t.s.i..v,.svv, 

- - - 12,162 

2~,196 16,5~3 44,773 - 

{165,149) {142,321~ (247,476) (54,$7ú~ 

6,699 6,~24 13,523 3,331 

~76,967} ~45,616) ~121,983~ - 

(8,595) ~6,265} 414,~66) - 

~ 912,215 $ 156,472 $ 1,668,687 $ {2,571,169) 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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$ 708,446 

1,362 

127,©24 

~S7C~:~:~~1'i 

223,159 

735,491 

952,923 

14,297,618 

~~ ~ 

Cisi(  C)~ GREEN~iEL[~ 
STATEMENT t~F FIaUCIARY NET PQSITIt)N 
June 3C}, 2fl21 

Private 

Purpose 

Trust Funds 

Successor 

Agency 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Interest receivable 

Prepaid insurance 

Tn#~I aç~et~ 

LfAÈ3f LIT1 E5 

Accrued interest payable 
Unearned revenue 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Cïue within one year 
Due in mare than one year 

Total líabílitíes 

C~EFERREa ffVFL©1JV ©F RES(J~.~RCES 

deferred gain on debt refunding 

T©tal deferred ínfl©w ©f resources 

NET PC)SITI~► N 
Unrestricted 

150,419 

150,419 

~ (15,522,778) 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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c~T~r c~~ ~~E~~~a 

STATEMENT c)F CHANGES IN FI[~U~IARY NET PCISI7I~N 
Far the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 

A©DITIQNS: 

Taxes 

Investment earnings 

Total additions 

V~Vlri~.+' ~V1~~~ 

Community development 

Interest expense 

Total deductions 

Change in net position 

Total net position-beginning 

Total net position-ending 

Private 
Purpose 

Trust Funds 

Successor 

Agency 

$ 1, 708, 552 

24,411 

~~~L~~~! 

4,9Q6 

498,253 

503,159 

2, 219, 904 

{15,742,582} 

$ ~15,522,778) 

The notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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CITY OF GREENFIELD 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2021 

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Reporting Entity 

The reporting entity is the City of Greenfield. There are no component units included in this report that meet the reporting 

entity definition criteria of GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by GASB Statement No. 39, GASB 

Statement No. 61, and GASB Statement No. 80. 

B. Basis of Presentation 

The City's basic financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 

States of America. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the acknowledged standard setting body for 

establishing accounting and financial reporting standards followed by governmental entities in the United States of America. 

Government-wide Statements 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display information about the primary government (the City). 

These statements include the financial activities of the overall City government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have 

been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. Government activities generally are financed through taxes, 

intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. 

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each segment of the 

Cíty's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, 

therefore, are clearly identifiable to a function. Program revenues include (a) charges paid by the recipients of goods or services 

offered by the programs, (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational needs of a program, and (c) 
fees, grants, and contributions that are restricted to financing the acquisition or construction of capital assets. Revenues that 

are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds. Separate statements for each fund category-

governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary-are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major individual funds, 

each of which is displayed in a separate column . All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor 
funds. 

Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in 

Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows for all proprietary funds. 

Proprietary funds and fiduciary funds are accounted for using the "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual 

basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current ornon-current ) are included on the Statement of Net 
Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases 

(expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are 

earned, while expenses are recognized in the period in which liability is incurred. 

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the primary operation of the fund. All 

other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the 

primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as non-operating expenses. 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private 

organizations, other governmental units, and/or other funds. Fiduciary funds use the full accrual basis of accounting for 

reporting receivables and payables. Fiduciary funds are reported in the fund financial statements but are not included for 

government-wide reporting purposes. 
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CITY CAF GREENI~IELC~ 
N{~TES T{~ BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
dune 30, 2021 

N~TE 1-- SUIVIMARY ~F SIGNIFICANT ACCt~UNTING PC}I.ICIES (Continued~ 

C. Major Funds 

GASB Statement  Na.  34 defines major funds and requires that the City's major funds are identified and presented separately in 
the fund financial statements. All other funds, called non-major funds, are combined and reported in a single column in the 
Fund Statements as Other Governmental Funds, regardless of their fund-type. 

Major funds are defined as funds that have either assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses equal to ten percent of 
their fund-type total or five percent of the total for all funds. The General Fund is always a major fund. The City may also 
voluntarily select other funds it believes should be presented as major funds. 

The City reported the following major governmental funds in the accompanying financial statements: 

General Fund —This fund accounts for all financial resources except those to be accounted for in another fund. It is the general 
operating fund of the City. 

Home Grant Fund —This fund accounts for the loans provided to eligible citizens for housing rehabilitation and down payment 
assistance. 

Trafj~ic lmp~act Funs! —This fund accounts for receipt of Traffic Mitigation Development Impact Fees and their expenditures on 

projects to mitigate traffic impacts. 

General Facilities lmpact Fund — This fund accounts for receipt of General Facilities Development Impact Fees and their 
expenditures on projects to expand governmental facilities. 

Housing Fund -- This fund accounts for the receípt of the law-moderate income housing loan repayments and related law-

moderate income housing expenditures. 

Supplemental transaction and Case Tax Fund —This fund accounts for receipt of voter-approved transactions and use tax and 

their expenditures to mítigate the reduction af, and maintain the continuation of, vital City services. 

Capital Projects Fund —This fund accounts for resources used for the acquisition of various major capital improvements. 

Fire Fund —This fund accounts for resources used for the operation of fire safety within the City. 

The City reported the following major proprietary funds: 

Water Fund -- This fund accounts far the activities of providing water to residents of the City. 

Sewer Fund —This fund accounts for the activities associated with the sewage treatment plant, pumping stations, and collections 
systems. 
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CITY O~ GREENFIELD 
NOTES Tt~ BAsiC FiNANCiAL STATEMENTS 

June 3~, 2{21 

NOTE 1— SUIUIMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ~Continued~ 

~,~ 

E. 

Basis of Accountín~ 

The government-wide, proprietary funds, and fiducïary funds financial statements are reported using the econ©mic resources 
measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at 
the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows tape place. 

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable ar~d available. The City considers all revenues 
reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after fiscal year end. 
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except far principal and interest an general long-term 
debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent that they have 
matured. 

Capital asset acquisitions are reported as ex~endítures in governmental funds. Proceeds of long-term debt and acquisitions 
under capital leases are reported as att~er financír~ sources. 

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City gives or receives value without directly receiving ar giving equal value in exchange, 
include propertytaxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in 
the fiscal year far which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized in the fiscal year 
in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 

tither revenues susceptible to accrual include other taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest, and charges for services. 

Grant revenues are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements are met. Under the terms of grant 
agreements, the City may fund certain programs with acombination ofcost-reimbursement grants, categorical black grants, and 
general revenues. Thus, both restricted and unrestricted net assets may be available to finance program 

expenditures/expenses. The City's policy is to first apply restricted grant resources to such programs, followed by general 

revenues, if necessary. 

Property Taxes 

California Constitution Article iii A limits the combined property tax rate to one percent of a property's assessed valuation. 
Additional taxes may be imposed with voters' approval. Assessed value is calculated atone hundred percent of a property's fair 
value, as defined by Article Xlii A, and may be increased no mare than two percent per year, unless a change in ownership or 
new construction occurs. The state legislature has determined the method of distributing the one percent tax levy among the 
various taxing jurisdictions. 

Property tax revenues are recognized in the fiscal year for which taxes have been levied and collected within sixty days of fiscal 
year end. Property taxes are billed and collected as follows: 

Secured Unsecured 
Valuation/Lien pates 

bevy gates 

pue pates 

pelinquency Gates 

F. Estimates 

January 1 January 1 

July 1 July J. 

November 1 ~5t~°~} August 1 

February 1 ~5{J~ } 

pecember 1~ {Nov.} August 31 

April 1B {Feb.} 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 

America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 

revenues, expenditures or expenses as appropriate. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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CITY of ~REEN~IELD 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2021 

NQTE 1--SUMMARY of SIGNIF#CANT ACCOUNTfN~ PoIICIES ~C©ntinued) 

Cash Eguiva#ants 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers a## highly liquid investment instruments purchased with 
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

H. Deferred Outf#ows and Inflows of Resources 

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 63, "Financial Reporting of deferred Outflows of Resources, Qe~erred /nflaws o~f Resources, and 
Net Position," and GASB Statement No. ~5, "hems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities,"the City recognizes deferred 
outf#ows and inf#ows of resources. 

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position wil#sometimes report a separate section for deferred Duff#ows of resources. 

A deferred Duff#ow of resources is defïned as a consumption of net position by the government that is app#icable to a future 

reporting period. The City has two items that qualify for reporting in this category; refer to Note 9 and N©te 11 for detailed 

listings of the deferred Duff#ows of resources the City has reported. 

In addition to liabi#hies, the Statement of Net Position and the Governmental Funds —Balance Sheet wi## sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred inf#ows of resources. A deferred inf#ow of resources is defïned as an acquisition of net position by 
the Citythat is app#icab#eto a future reporting period. TheCityhas two itemswhich qua#ify for reporting in this category; refer 
to Note E and Note 11 for detailed listings of the deferred inf#ows of resources the City has reported. 

Capíta# Assets 

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historica# cost if  actua#  historical cost ïs not available. Contributed 

capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date contributed. The City's policy is to capita#ize al#capital assets 

with costs exceeding certain minimum thresho#ds of X2,500 and with useful lives exceeding one year. 

with the imp#ementation of GASB Statement No. 3~, the City was not required to record infrastructure assets existing or 
acquired prior to duly 1, 2001. The Cïty e#acted not to record such infrastructure assets. The City may e#ect to record such 

infrastructure assets in the future. 

The purpose of depreciation is to spread costs of capita# assets equitably among a## users over the #fives of these assets. The 
amount charged to depreciation expense each fïsca#year represents that fiscal year's pro rata share of the cost of capita# assets. 
GASB Statement No. ~ requires that al#capita# assets with limited useful #fives be depreciated over their estimated useful lives. 
Depreciation is provided using the straight line method, which means the cost of the asset is divided by its expected useful life in 
years and the result is charged to expense each fiscal year until the asset is fully deprecíated. The City has assigned the useful 

lives listed below to capital assets: 

Utility #fines and equipment 10-40 years 

Building and improvements 10-~0 years 

Infrastructure 10-~0 years 

Property and equipment 5-10 years 
Vehicles 5 years 

Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenue arises when assets are received before revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied. Grants and 
emitlements received before e#igibi#ify requirements are met are recorded as unearned revenue. 

Compensated Absences 

In compliance wíth Governments#Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16, the City has estab#fished a liabi#ify for accrued 

sick #save and vacation in re#avant funds. For governments#type funds, the current liabi#ify appears in the respective funds. A## 
vacation paid is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. This #iabi#ity is set up 

for the current employees at the current rates of pay. If sick #cave and vacation are not used by the employee during the term 

of amp#oyment, a portion of the compensation is payable to the amp#oyes at the time of retirement. Such compensation is 

calculated at the employee's prevai#ing rate at the time of retirement or termination. 
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C11'Y CAF GREEIV~lELD 
NOTES TO BASF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June ~O, 2021 

~iC)TE 1--SUMMARY E}F  S~~lU1FICANT ACCtJUNTIi~~ PE~LICIES {Continual!} 

K. Compensated Absences ~Continued~ 

Each fiscal year, an adjustment to the liability 'rs made based on pay rate changes and adjustments for the current portion. The 
general Fund is primarily responsible for the repayment of the governmental portion of compensated absences. 

L. Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension 
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City of Greenfield's California Public Employee's Retirement System 
{CaIPERS} plans {Plans} and additions to/deductions from the Plans` fiduciary net position have been determined on the same 
basis as they are reported by CaIPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments {including refunds of employee contributions are 

recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

M. Fund Balances 

Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows: 

Nonspendable Fund Balance —represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form {such as 
inventory or prepaid insurances or are legally required to remain intact {such as notes receivable or principal of a permanent 
fund}. 

Restricted Fund Balance —represents amounts that are constrained by external parties, constitutional provisions or enabling 

legislation. 

Committed Fund Balance —represents amounts that can only be used for a specific purpose because of a formal action by the 
City's governing board. Committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the governing board removes those 
constraints by taping the same type of formal action. Committed fund balance amounts may be used for other purposes with 
appropriate due process by the governing board. Commitments are typically done through adoption and amendment of the 
budget. Committed fund balance amounts differ from restricted balances in that the constraints on their use do not come from 
outside parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation. 

Assigned Fund Balance —represents amounts that the City intends to use for a specific purpose, but that do n©t meet the criteria 
to be classified as restricted or committed. Intent may be stipulated by the governing board or by an official or body to which 
the governing board delegates the authority. Specific amounts that are not restricted or committed in a special revenue, capital 
projects, debt service, or permanent fund are assigned for purposes in accordance with the nature of their fund type or the 
fund's primary purpose. Assignments within the general fund convey that the intended use of these amounts is for a specific 
purpose that is narrower than the general purpose of the City. 

Unassigned Fund Balance —represents amounts which are unconstrained in that they may be spent for any purpose. Only the 
general fund reports a positive unassigned fund balance. Other governmental funds might report a negative balance in this 
classification because of overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed or assigned. 

when an expenditure is incurred for a purpose for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available, the City 
considers restricted funds to have been spent first. when an expenditure is incurred for which commïtted, assigned, or 
unassigned fund balances are available, the City considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then 
assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds. 

N. Llet  Position 

~ASB Statement No. f B requires that the difference between assets added to the deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities 
added to the deferred inflows of resources, be reported as net position. Net  position is classified as either net investment in 

capital assets, restricted, or unrestricted. 

Net position that is net investment in capital assets, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and reduced by 

the outstanding principal of related debt. Restricted net position is the portion of net position that has external constraints 
placed on ít by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations of other governments, or through constitutional provisions 
or enabling legislations. Unrestricted net position consists of net position thatdoes not meetthedefin'rtionof netinvestmentin 
capital assets or restricted net position. 
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CITY t~F ~REEN~IELQ 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 3O, 2021 

IVC}TE 1— SUMt1~ARY ~F S1~N~FtCANT ACC~lU1~TINú PQi.ICIES ~Continued} 

O. Future Accounting Pronouncements 

GASB Statements listed below will be implemented in future financial statements: 

Statement No. ~7 "Leases" The provisions of this statement are effective 

forfiscal years beginning afterJune 15, 2021. 

Statement N©. 89 "Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred The provisions of this statement are effective 

before the End of a Construction forfiscal years beginning after December 15, 2029. 

Period" 

Statement No. 94 "Public-Private and Public-Public 

Partnerships and Availability 

Payment Arrangements" 

Statement No. 96 "Subscription-Based Information 

Technology Arrangements" 

Statement IVo. 97 "Certain Component Unit Criteria, and 

Accounting and Financial Reporting for 

Internal Revenue Code Section 457 

Deferred Compensation Plans - an 

amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 

and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB 

Statement N o. 32" 

Statement No. 99 "Omnibus 2022" 

Statement No. 10fl "Accounting Changes and Error 

Corrections - an amendment of GA58 

Statement No. ó2" 

Statement Rlo. 101 "Compensated Absences" 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

forfiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

forfiscal years beginning afterJune 15, 2021. 

The provisions of this statement except for paragraphs 

11b, 13, and 14 are effective for fiscal years beginning 

afterJune 15, 2020. Paragraph 11b is effective forfiscal 

years beginning after December 31, 2021. Paragraphs 

13 and 14 are effective for fiscal years beginning after 

June 15, 2021. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

forfiscal years beginning afterJune 15, 2022. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

forfiscal years beginning afterJune 15, 2022. 

The provisions of this statement except for paragraphs 

6-9 are effective for fiscal years beginning after 

December 15, 2019. Paragraphs 6-9 are effective forfiscal 

years beginning after June 15, 2021. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

in April 2022 except for the provisions related to 

leases, PPPs, SBITAs, financial guarantees 

and derivative instruments. The provisions related 

to leases, PPPs, and SBITAs are effective for fiscal 

years beginning after June 15, 2022. The provisions 

related to financial guarantees and derivative 

instruments are effective for fiscal years beginning 

afterJune 15, 2023. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

forfiscal years beginning afterJune 15, 2023. 

The provisions of this statement are effective 

forfiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023. 

Statement IUo. 91 "Conduit Debt Obligations" 

Statement No. 92 "Omnibus 2020" 

Statement No. 93 "Replacement of Interbank Offered 

Rates" 

~ 



CITY of ~F~EENFlE~.Q 
NC)TES TC~ BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
.lone 30, 2021 

NOTE 2— STEwAR~SHIP, CC)MPLIANCE, AN~ ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. Bud~etary lnformatíon 

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally acceptedrn the United States of America 
for governmental funds. The City's budget ordinances require that in April of each fiscal year, the City Manager submit a 
preliminary budget that includes projected expenditures and the means of financing them, to the City Council, for the fiscal year 
commencing the following July 1. As modified during public study sessions, the preliminary budget becomes the proposed 
budget. Following public hearings on the proposed budget, the final annual budget ïs adopted by the City Council in June for the 
following fiscal year. After adoption ofthe final budget, transfers of appropriations within a general fund department, orwithin 
other funds, can be made by the City Manager. Budget modifications between funds; increases or decreases to a fund's overall 
budget; transfers between general fund departments; or transfers that affect capital projects, must be approved by the City 
Council. Numerous properly authorized amendments are made during the fiscal year. 

Budgetary control is enhanced by integrating the budget into the general ledger accounts. Encumbrance accounting is 
employed {e.g., purchase orders to avoid expenditures over the budget. In general, encumbrances outstanding at fiscal year 
end are automatically re-budgeted in the following fiscal year. 

B. ~efïcit Fund Balances 

Major Funds: 

A deficit fund balance of 1,8E2,491 exists in the general Facilities Impact Fund. This fund balance deficit is due to the City 
incurring casts in advance of receiving revenue. The City expects to fund the deficit through future revenues andjor transfers of 
funds. 

A deficit fund balance of $1,48E,8E2 exists in the Fire Fund. This fund balance deficit is due to the City incurring costs in advance 
of receiving revenue. The City expects to fund the deficit through future revenues andjor transfers of funds. 

A deficit fund balance of $3,144,977 exists 'rn the Internal Service Fund. This fund balance deficit ïs due to the City incurring 
costs ïn advance of moving money into the fund to cover the services. The City expects to fund the deficit through future 
transfers of funds. 

Nonmajor Funds: 

A deficit fund balance of $72,701 exists ín the P©lice Impact Fund . This fund balance deficit is due to the Cíty incurring costs in 
advance of receiving revenue. The City expects to fund the deficit through future revenues andjor transfers of funds. 

A deficit fund balance of $104,941 exists in the greenfield Science worl~shop Fund. This fund balance defícít is due to the Cíty 
incurring costs ïn advance of receiving revenue. The City expects to fund the deficït through future revenues andjor transfers of 
funds. 

NC}TE 3 -- CASH ANa INVESTMENTS 

The composition of cash and investments as of June 30, 2021, by fund, is as follows: 

general Fund 

Special Revenue Funds 

Capital Project Fund 

Proprietary Funds 

Fiduciary Funds 

Available 
For 

~gerations 

$ 304,201 $ 

1 ~, ~ ..J `T,.J ~ ~ 

1,750,392 

S,f92,104 

Restricted Total 

- $ 304,201 

- 12,294,931 

- 1,750,392 

- 5,69Z,1í 4 

708,440 708,44E 

Total $ 20,041,688 708,440 $ 20,750,134 



CITY t~~ GREEN~IEI.[~►  
NOTES TO BASF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 3ú, 2021. 

NOTE 3 -- SASH ANfl INVESTMENTS {Cantinuedj 

Cash and investments at June 3C~, 2021, consisted of the following: 

Cash in banks and an hand 
Investments 

Total cash and investments, statement of net position 

Cash in banks and on hand 
Cash and investments with fiscal agent 

Total cash and investments, statement of fiduciary net position 

Total 

$ ~,932,172 

17,1Ú9,516 

20,041,688 

708,439 
7 

788,446 

$ 2~},750,134 

governmental Accounting Standards Board {t~ASB) Statement No. 72, „Fair Value measurements and Application," provides the 
framework for' measuring fair value. The framework categorizes a fair value hierarchy that is based on the valuati©n inputs used to 
measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant 
other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The City has the following recurring fair value measurements 
as of June 3C~, 2021: 

Fair Value Measurement Using 

Quoted Prices in significant 

Active Markets C)ther significant 

for Identical Qbservable Unobservable 

Assets Inputs Inputs  

Tota  I {Level 1) (Level 2 } { Levei 3 } 

__ Z,399,12~ .~ ~,399,1.2D 

Z,399,1~0 ~ Z,3yy,1Z0 ~ - ~ -  ~~~- 

991,106 

13,719,294 

j 1I,1Uy,51~ 

Investments by fa  i  r  va  1 ue 

Debt securities: 

Negotiable certificates of deposit 

Total investments measured affair value 

Investments measured at amortised cost: 

Money ma rket funds 

LAIF 

Neld by fiscal agent: 

Money ma rket funds  

Tota  I investments 

A. Investments Authorized b the California government Code and the Cit 's Investment Polic 

The table below identifies the "rnvestment types that are authorized for the City by the California government Code. The table also 
identïfies certain provisions of the California government Code that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of 
credit risk. 

maximum maximum 
Authorized maximum Percentage Investment 

Investment Type maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer 

Local Agency Bonds 5 years None None 
U.S. Treasury Obligations S years None None 

U.S. Agency Securities S years None None 

Bankers' Acceptance 18O days 4O/o 3O~ 

Commercial Paper 18O days 15% 1O/Q 

Negotiable Certificates of Qeposit 5 years 3O% None 

Time C~eposits S years 25/© None 

Repurchase Agreements 9C~ days None None 

m 



~~TY t~► ~ ~REEN~IELD 
Nc3TES TC~ BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2fl21 

iVE~TE 3 -- SASH ANC IN~/ESTMEIVTS ~C©ntinued} 

A. Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City's Investment Policy ~Confinued~ 

Reverse Repurchase Agreements ~fl days ~fl~o None 
Medium-Term Notes 5 years 3fl°~ 15% 

Mutual Funds (~/A ~flla 1fl~© 

Money Market Mutual Funds N/A ~fl/~ 1fl~a 

Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 2fl~© None 

County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None 

Local Agency Investment Fund {LAIF) N/A None $75,flflfl,flflfl 
JPA Pools bother investment pools N%A Done None 

B. investments Authorized by debt Agreements 

Investment of debt proceeds held by band trustees are governed by the provisions of the debt agreements, rather than the 
general provisions of the California Government Code or the City's investment policy. The table below identifies the investment 
types that are authorized for investments held by fiscal agents. The table also identifies certain provisions of these debt 
agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. 

Maximum Maximum 
Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment 

Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio ín Cane Issuer 

IJ.S. Treasury 4~bligations None None None 
1.S. Agency Securities None None None 

Bankers' Acceptance 1 year None None 

Commercial Paper None None None 

Negotiable Certificates of Caeposit None None None 

Investment Agreements None None None 

Repurchase Agreements 3fl days None None 

Money Market Mutual Funds N/A None None 

Local Agency Investment Fund ~LAIF~ N/A None $75,flflfl,flflfl 

Local Agency Bonds done None None 

C. Caisclosures  Relatin to Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, 
the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of ifs fair value to changes in market interest rates. ne  of the 
ways that the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk ís by purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term 
investments, and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity 
evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flows and liquidity needed for operations. 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values cat the City's investments fo market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the 
following table that shows the distributïon of the City's investments by maturity: 

Remaining Maturity ~in Months 

Carrying 12 Months 13-~4 25-6fl More than 

Investment Type Amount Cdr Less Months Months 6fl Months 

LAIF $ 13,71,2flfl $ 13,719,29fl - $ - $ - 

Negotiable certificates of deposit 2,399,12fl 6fl8,27fl 1,272,fl96 518,754 - 

Money market funds 991,1fl6 991,1fl6 - - - 

Held by fiscal agent: 

Money market funds 7 7 - - - 

Total $ 17,1fl9,523 $ 15,318,673 $ 1,272,fl~6 $ 518,754 $ - 

~ 



CITY OF GREENFIELD 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2021 

NOTE 3 —CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

C. Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk (Continued 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. This is 

measured by the assignment of rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the minimum 
rating required by the California Government Code, and the actual rating as of fiscal year end for each investment type. 

Investment Type 

LAIF 

Negotiable ~ertifirateç of dern,nçit 

Money market funds 

Held by fiscal agent: 

Money market funds 

Total 

Minimum Exempt 

Carrying Legal From 

Amount Rating Disclosure 

$ 13,719,290 N/A $ - $ 

2 ~Q9 ~ 20 I\! /A ,~.i !' ~ 

991,106 N/A 

7 N/A 

$ 17,109,523 $ - $ 

Rating as of Fiscal Year End 

AAA Nnt RatPr~ 

- $ 13,719,290 

~ ~Aa 1 ~n ~,.i..i ✓ ,s~v 

991,106 

7 

- $ 17,109,523 

D. Concentration of Credit Risk 

The investment policy of the City contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond that 

stipulated by the California Government Code. There are no investments in any one issuer that represents S% or more of the total 

City's investments. 

Custodial Credit Risk  

Custodia!  credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a government will 

not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. 

The California Government Code and the City's investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the 

exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code 
requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by State or local governmental units by pledging securities in an 
undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under State law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The fair 

value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public 

agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure the City's deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes 
having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. 

None of the City's deposits with financial institutions in excess of the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation's limits were held 

in uncollateralized accounts. 

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a 

transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession 

of another party. The California Government Code and the City's investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements 

that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for investments. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally 

applies only to direct investments in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government's indirect 

investment in securities through the use of mutual funds or governmental investment pools (such as LAIF). 

F Investment in State Investment Pool 

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the California Government Code 

under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of the City's investment in this pool is reported in the 

accompanying basic financial statements at the amounts based upon the City's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for 

the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the 

accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 
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CITY ~F GREENFIEL©  
NATES  TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
dune ~{~, 2021 

N{~TE 4 -- NC)TES RECEIVABLE 

A. 2005 Community Housing Improvement Systems and Plannín~ Association 

On [~ecember 28, 2005, the City entered into an agreement wïth the Community H©using Improvement Systems and Planning 
Association  {CRISPA},  a nonprofit housing agency, in which the City contributed X500,000 toward the cost of developing a 40-
unitmulti-family residential project, named walnut Place, for low and moderate income households. In exchange for the City 
contribution, the City obtained a promissory note and deed of trust secured by the housing project.  CRISPA  agrees to maintain 
the project in accordance with certain low-and moderate-income restrictions imposed upon it by the City. Repayment of the 
$500,000 note is not due as long as  CRISPA  meets the requirements of the various restrictions. Accordingly, the City has 
recorded a note receivable and offsetting unearned revenue, since the value of the note is not a source of readily available 
funding. 

B. 2C~i~7 Communi~:y Housing Improvement Systems and Planning Association 

On May 2, 2007, the City entered into an agreement with the Community Housing Improvement Systems and Planning 
Association ~CHISPA}, a nonprofit housing agency, in which the City contributed X500,000 toward the cast of developing a 40-
unit multi-family residential project, named Vineyard Green Townhomes, for low and moderate income households. In 
exchange for the City contribution, the City obtained a promissory note and deed of trust secured by the housing project.  
CRISPA  agrees to maintain the project in accordance with certain low- and moderate-income restrictions imposed upon it by the 
City. The loan accrues simple interest at 3l per annum and repayment of the $500,000 note is not due until 55 years from the 
date the Promissory Note was signed. Accordingly, the City has recorded a note receivable and offsetting unearned revenue, 
since the value of the note is not a source of readily available funding. At dune 30, 2021, the loan had accrued interest of 
$13$,450, bringing the loan balance to $038,450. 

C. 2000 Communít Housin Irn rovement S stems and Plannin Association 

On April 10, 2009, the City entered into an agreement with the Community Housing Improvement Systems and Planning 
Association {CHISPA~, a nonprofit housing agency, in which the City contributed $700,000 toward the cost of developing a 40-
unit multi--family residential project, named Vineyard Green Townhomes, for low and moderate income households. In 
exchange for the City contribution, the City obtained a promissory note and deed of trust secured by the housíng project.  
CRISPA  agrees to maintain the project in accordance with certain low-and moderate-income restrictions imposed upon it by the 
City. The lean accrues simple interest at 3 per annum and repayment of the $700,000 note is not due until 55 years from the 

date the Promissory Note was signed. Accordingly, the City has recorded a note receivable and offsetting unearned revenue, 
since the value of the note is not a source of readily available funding. At dune 30, 2021, the loan had accrued interest of 

$193,749, bringing the loan balance to $893,749. 

D. Magnolia Place 

On November 25, 2014, the City entered into a loan agreement with Greenfield senior Associates, for the construction of 32 
units of senior rental housing, to include 4 very-low income units, 27low-income units, and one manager's unit. The agreement 
included an acquisition loan and a fee deferral loan. The City contributed $708,000 toward the acquisition costs ofthe property, 
and X250,000 teward the deferral of development impact fees. In exchange for the City contribution, the City obtained a 
promissory note for each loan, a loan agreement for both notes, and a deed of trust secured by the project. The term of the 
acquisition loan ís 55 years from the date the Certificate of Occupancy is issued for the project, at 0% interest from 
disbursement through the earlier of the permanent loan conversion or the third anniversary of the construction loan closing, 
and thereafter at a rate between 0~ and 3~©, to be set by the City Manager. The term of the fee deferral loan is 30 years from 
the date of the Certificate of Occupancy, at 0%interest from disbursement through the earlier of the permanent loan conversion 
or the third anniversary of the construction loan closing, and thereafter at a rate of 3i~. Leans are repaid annually in arrears, 
after conversion from the construction loan to the permanent loan, and no later than April 15 of each year with respect to the 
previous calendar year, in amounts for each loan equal to 500 of the Residual Receipts. Both loans become due and payable if 
the developer transfers or sells the project without approval of the City. The City has recorded a note receivable and offsetting 
unearned revenue for the acquisition lean, since the value of the note is not a source of readily available funding. The fee 
deferral loan will be recorded as a note receivable at the time that the fee deferral occurs. 

~ 



~1TY CAF ~REENFIEi[~ 
NCITES TCJ BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 20121 

NC}TE 4 -- NOTES RE+EEIVABLE Continued} 

E. Dawn Payment Assistance Prram ~CDB~~ 

The City has received funding from the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD},via the Community Development 
Block grant ~CDB~} program to help !ow-and moderate- income residents and commercial enterprises purchase property by 
assisting them with loans to make down payments, The promissory notes accrue simple interest of 3~ and the repayment of 
the principal and interest is deferred for 301 years, unless the property is sold or transferred. Accordingly, the City has recorded 
notes receivable and offsetting deferred revenue, since the value of the notes is not a source of readily available funding. At 
June 30, 2021, there was one such note receivable for a tuts! balance of 48,00. 

F. Down Payment Assistance Program 

At June 3t~, 2c~21, the City held ~b8,b82 in promissory notes secured by deeds of trust on various residential propertïes for 
households that participated in the City's dawn payment assistance program for low- and moderate-income households. The 
promissory note accrues simple interest of 3%and repayment of the principal and interest is deferred for 3o years, unless the 

property is sold or transferred. Accordingly, the City has recorded notes receivable and offsetting deferred revenue, since the 
value of the notes is not a source of readily available funding. 

G. Housing Rehabilitation 

The City provides loans to eligible citizens through the Housing Fund and Home grant Fund for housing rehabilitation. Interest is 
generally deferred and repayment occurs when property ownership changes. The balance outstandïng at June 30, 2021, ís 
1,0~~,297, which is offset by unearned revenue in the governmental funds financial statements. As part of the Home program, 

in c~ctober 2015, the City entered into a Promissory Note with Greenfield Pacific Associates II, LP for g ~,Soo,000 advance for 
the construction of the Terracing yaks housing project. The terms of the note repayment is 55 years from the Notice of 
Completion, or no more than 58 years from Clctober 2015. The outstanding principal balance incurs 3Io simple interest from the 
date of disbursement. The note will be payable from the residual receipts collected from the Project. The balance outstanding 
at June 30, 2021 is S,o58,318, which includes $558,318 in accrued interest, and is offset by deferred revenue in the 

governmental funds financial statements. 

NC)TE S -- CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capita! assets activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, was as follows: 

G©vernmentat Activities 
Nondepreciable capital assets: 

Land 

Construction in pr©grass 

Balance 

July, 1 

2020 AddltlonS 

$ 6,588,665 $ - $ 

9 A A /' t f'1 +F ~f A~! ~f /l 

 

Pri or Peri od 

A _! _ __i.__ ___.s._  

Balance 

June 30, 

1 A 1 7 

_ $ _ $ 

(A A !9A^fI 

 

- $ 6,588,665 

^t 9 F A /1 f 

7©tal nondepreciable capital assets 

depreciable capital assets: 

Buildings and improvements 

Property and equipment 

Infrastructure 

Total depreciable capital assets 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Net depreciable capital assets 

Net capital assets 

$ 6,731,334 $ 118,310 $ - $ (44,083} $ - $ 6,805,561 

$ 29,006,415 $ - $ - - $ 1,480,872 $ 30,487,287 

4,989,826 364,585 - - 181,890 5,536,301 

10,166,318 - - 44,083 (969,250} 9,241,151 

44,162,559 364,585 - 44,083 693,512 45,264,739 

(17,490,627} (2,185,930} - - 1,402,057 {18,274,500} 

z~,~~1,s3z ~ _~.,~~~.,~~~~ ~ - 4~,vz~~ ~ ~,u~5,~ey ~ lb,yyu,z~y 

$ 33,403,266 $ (1,703,035} $ - $ - $ 2,095,569 $ 33,795,800 



CITY CAF ~REEN~IEL.L3 
NOTES TfJ BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

J une 30, 2021 

NE~TE 5 -- CAPITAE ASSETS ~C©ntinued) 

Balance Balance 

July, 1 Prior Peri©d lone 30, 

2020 Additi©ns Qeleti©ns Transfers Adjustments 2021 

BüSiness-Type Activities 

N©ndepreciable capital asse#s: 

Land $ 323,537 $ - $ - - $ - $ 323,537 

C©nstruction in progress 331,258 6,988 - - - 338,246 

Total n©ndepreciable capital assets $ 654,795 $ 6,988 - - $ - $ 661,783 

[?epreciabie capital assets: 

Property and equipment $ 30,008,597 $ 325,148 $ - - $ {70,601) $ 30,263,144 

Total depreciable capital assets 30,008,597 325,148 - - {7fl,601) 30,263,144 

Less accumulated depreciation (12,054,428) {1,154,240] - - {29,384] {13,238,052) 

Rlet depreciable capital assets $ 17,954,169 $ 
~~~~~~ 

{829,092) $ - - $ {99,985) $ 17,025,092 

Net capital assets $ 18,608,964 $ {822,104, $ - - $ {99,985) $ 17,686,875 

©epreciatíon expense was charged to function and programs based on their usage of the related assets. The amounts allocated to each 
function or program were as follows: 

Governmental Acti~rities: 

General government ~ 286,143 

Publ ic works 30,331 

Parks and recreation 226,341. 

Public safety 507,6©7 

Streets and roads 1,136,5C}8 

Total depreciation expense-governmental activities 2,185,934 

BU~1nt'SS-ty~?e Actii/it~E'S: 

Water $ 587,468 

Sewer 566, 772 

Total depreciation expense-business-type activities $ 1,154,244 

NCJ►TE 6 —  [~EFERRE[~ INFI.t~WS C?F ~ESt~URCES 

At June 30, 2021, deferred inflows of resources, reported on the balance Sheet- Governmental Funds, consisted of the following: 

Unavailable 

~Jlajor Funds: 

Home Grant Fund 

Housing Fund 

Nanmaj©r Fund: 

C~BG Fund 
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CITY OF GREENFIELD 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2021 

NOTE 7 —LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

A. Capital Leases Payable 

On December 30, 2015, the capital lease was refunded by the 2015 Refunding Civic Center Lease. The refunding resulted in an 

overall debt service savings of $188,247, and the net present value of the debt service savings, called an economic gain, 

amounted to $169,357. Refunding also resulted in an accounting loss of $31,165, which is amortized over the life of the 2015 

lease. The refunding lease accrues interest at 1.9 percent and has semi-annual lease payments due December 30 and June 30 

each year. Future minimum lease payments are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 
Ending 
IIInP ~fl Llmniint 

2022 $ 182,570 

2023 182,570 

2024 182, 570 

2025 182,570 

2026 82,139 

Total minimum lease payments 812,419 

Less amount representing interest (36,941) 

Present value on net minimum lease payments $ 775,478 

On December 10, 2015, the City entered into a capital lease agreement with PNC Equipment Finance, LLC. The lease proceeds 

were used for the acquisition and installation of an energy conservation project. The amount of the lease was $4,120,377 and 

accrues interest at 3.139 percent. The lease is secured by all equipment under the lease, and the moneys and investments held 

in the escrow fund . Semi-annual lease payments are due June 10 and December 10 of each year, commencing on December 10, 
2016. Future minimum lease payments are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 

Ending 

~t1nP ~n Amni~nt 

LULL ~ ~45,4U25 

2023 359, 358 

2024 373,850 

2025 388, 908 

2026 404, 550 

2027-2031 2, 033, 378 

Total minimum lease payments 3,905,452 

Less amount representing interest (581,754) 

Present value on net minimum lease payments $ 3,323,698 

On September 30, 2016, the City entered into a capital lease agreement with PNC Equipment Finance, LLC. The lease proceeds 

were used for the acquisition and installation of an energy conservation project. The amount of the lease was $2,163,836 and 

accrues interest at 2.782 percent. The lease is secured by all equipment under the lease, and the moneys and investments held 

in the escrow fund. Semi-annual lease payments are due June 10 and December 10 of each year commencing December 10, 

2016. Future minimum lease payments are as shown on the following page: 
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~ITY t~F ~REENFlE~a 
NC)TES TC) BASIC FINANCIAI STATEMENTS 
~une 30, 2021 

Nt~TE 7 — L~}IUG-TERM LIAB~LITIES ~Continued~ 

A. Capital Leases Payable (C©ntinued~ 

Fiscal Year 

Ending 

lone ~~ Amount 

2022 $ 164,418 

2023 168,046 
2024 171,652 
2025 275, 230 

2026 138,774 
2027-2031 970.271 

Total minimum lease payments 1,828,391 
Less amount representing interest {257,012) 

Present value on net minimum lease payments $ 1,571,379 

Can December 7, 2015, the City entered rote a capital lease agreement with lJS Bank Equipment Finance. The lease preceeds 
were used to purchase a Konica copier for the Police Department. The amount of the lease was $10,497 and the interest 
accrues at 4.738 percent. Annual lease payments are due each year cemmencing December 2015. The lease was paid in full 
during the 2020-21 fiscal year. 

Can march 14, 2019, the City entered into a capital lease agreement with Motorela Solutions, Inc. The lease proceeds were used 
to purchase Police radios. The amount of the lease was $240,329 and accrues at 5.224°©. Annual payments are due each year 
commencing March 2020. Future minimum lease payments are as fellows on the next page: 

Fiscal Year 

Ending 
- _ .~,~ 

2023 46,715 

2024 46,715 

Total minimum lease payments 140,145 

Less amount representing interest ~13,750~ 

Present value on net minimum lease payments $ 126,395 

C)n February 1, 2019, the City entered irate a capital lease agreement with KS State Bank. The lease proceeds were used to 
purchase a citywide surveillance system. The amount of the lease was $1,170,676 and accrues at 4.131x. Payments of X21,628 
are due monthly commencing February 2Cí19. Future minimum lease payments are as follows: 

Fiscal Year 

Ending 
.,,, - - 

LVL~ ~ L3/,yv0 

2023 259,534 

2024 151.395 

Total minimum lease payments 648,835 

Less amount representing interest (33,367) 

Present value on net minimum lease payments ~ 615,468 
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CITI  ~~ CREEIVFIEL.D 
NOTES TC~ BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June ~~, Zú21 

NC)TE 7 - LC}I~Ità-TERI~II I.IAE3# CITIES {C©ntinued} 

E~. California Infrastructure and Economic Development dank Loan Agreement 

In September 2úú6, the City entered into two direct borrowing loan agreements with the California Infrastructure and Economic 

Development dank ~CIEDB). The agreements provide financing for two projects within the City: the 1út" Street Water Expansion 
Project and the Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion. The Water Expansion Project financing agreement is $3,7ú0g00 and 
the Wastewater Plant Expansion fínancing agreement is $2,36ú,úúú, The loans were at an interest rate of 3.lSl with semi-
annual payments due in August and February of each year. 

The future minimum payment obligation for the Water Expansion Project loan agreement at June 3ú, 2021, is as follows: 

Fiscal Year 

Ending 

ll~nP ~(l Prinrinal 1nt~~rP~t Tni-al 

2022 ~ ~.14, 390 ~ 69,188 $ 179, 538 

2023 113, 867 ~~, 656 139, 523 

2024 117, 454 62, 012 179, 466 

2025 121,154 58,254 139,448 

2026 124, 970 54, 378 139, 348 

2023-2031 686,439 209, 332 895, 371 

2032-2036 801, 581 92, 377 893, 958 

2037 175. 739 2. 768 178. 547 

$ 2, 251, 634  $ 61.3, 965 $ 2, 865, 599 

The future minimum payment obligation for the Wastewater Plant Expansion loan agreement at June 3ú, 2021, is as follows: 

Fiscal Year 

Ending 

1ttn~ ~(~ Prinrinal InfiPrPSt Tntal 

2022 $ 76, 299 ~ 47, 822 ~ 124,121 

2023 78, 703 45, 380 124, 083 

2024 81, 382 42, 862 124, Ú44 

2025 83, 339 40, 265 124, 044 

2©26 86, 337 37, 585 123, 962 

2023- 2431 474, 455 144, 686 639,141 

2©32-2436 554,038 63,849 613,887 

2037 123,495 1,933 123,408 

$ 1, 556, 288 $ 424, 362 $ 1, 980, 650 

C. Compensated Absences 

governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 identifies certain items that should be accrued as a liability as 
benefits are earned by employees, but only to the extent it is probable that the employer will compensate the employees for the 
benefits through cash payments conditioned on the employee`s termination or retirement. 

The City's employees accumulate earned but unused benefits, which can be converted to cash at termination of employment. 
The non-current portion of these vested benefits, payable in accordance with various collective bargaining agreements, attune 
3ú, Zú21, total 669,Zú5 for governmental activities. 



CITY ~F GFiEElUEIELC~ 
NtJTE T~ BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2021 

NC}TE ~ —CHANGES 1111 Lt~NG-TERM LIAE3ILITIES 

The following is a summary of long-term liability activities for the fiscal }rear ended June 30, 2021: 

Balance Balance Due Within 

July 1, 2020 Additions ©eleti©ns June 30, 2021 One Year 

Governmental activities: 

capital leases payable $ 5,514,475 - $ 673,436 ~ 4,841,039 ~ 669,90E 

Net pension liability 4,525,605 7,760 - 5,326,365 - 

C©mpensatedobsences 556,509 433,278 320,492 (69,295 - 

Total $ 10, 696, 589 $ 1,134, 038 $ 993, 928 $ 10, 836, 699 $ 669, 905 

Balance Balance Due Within 

July 1, 2020 Additions ©eleti©ns June 30, 2021 One Year 

Business-type activities: 

CIE©Bwater i©an -direct borrowing ~ 2,358,653 - $ 107,019 $ 2,251,634 ~ 110,390 

CIEaB sewer loan -direct born©wing 1,630,257 - ?3,969 1,556,288 76,299 

Capital leases payable 1,692,299 - 120,920 1,571,379 121,343 

Net pension liability 423,218 - 1.21,983 301,235 - 

Total $ 6,104, 427 $ - ~~ $ 423, 891 $ 5, 680, 536 $ 308, 032 

N~TE 9— L~EI=ERREC3 tJIJTFL~1lVS t~F RESCy~1RCES — CIEBT REFUNC~ING 

At June 3tJ, 2021, deferred outflows of resources relating to debt refunding, reported in the statement of net position, consisted of the 
following: 

Governmental 

Activities 

©eferred charge on refunding $ 13,763 

N{~TE 1t3— IN1'ERIWtJNE~ TRANSACTIC)NS 

Interfund transactions are reported as either advances, services provided, reimbursements, or transfers. Advances are reported as 
interfund receivables and payables, as appropriate, and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be 
at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses. Fieimbursementsoccuc when one fund incurs a cost, 
charges the appropriate benefiting fund, and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as 
transfers. Transfers among governmental funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements. 

A. Clue to Fr©m ether Funds 

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2(321, are as follows on the following page: 
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Maj©r G®vernmental Funds: 
General Fund 
General Facilities Impact Fund 

©ebt service Fund 

Proprretary Funds: 
Water Fund 
Sewer Fund 

T©talc 

~ ~., 895, 7(11 ~ - 

j }~ ^j 

- 1, 895, 741 

~~ 643, 2 ~~ ' 

- 761, 4tJ3 

- 881, 869 

$ 3, 538, 973 $ 3, 538, 973 

CITY ~F ~REEFIELC~ 
NOTES TC~ BASK FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

.tune 34, 2421 

iVt~TE 1t;— ii~TERFUNa TRAi1iACTi~NS ~Cflntinued~ 

A. clue to/From ether Funds ~Contínued~ 

Fund 

Major Governmental Funds: 
General Fund 

Traffic Impact Fund 
Capital P r©ject Fund 

Fire Fund 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds: 

Supplemental Law Enforcement Service Fund 
Gas Tax Fund 

Police Impact Fund 

Greenfield Science Worl~shop Fund 

Water Impact Fund 

debt Service Fund 
Internal Service Fund: 

Internal Service Fund 

aue From 

$ 1,646,128 ~ 

3,4~~,~~~ 

1,148,186 

72,701 

141,745 

1,482,421 

Du e To 

1,646,128 

72,741 

141,745 

1,148,186 

4,13,999 

Total $ 7,423,T19 $ 7,423,719 

B. Advances Receivable and Payable 

Advances receivable and payable constitute long-term borrowing between funds. Individual advance receivable and payable balances 
at June 34, 2421, are as follows: 

Advance Advance 

Fund Receivable Payable 

i~d~TE 11 -- PEi~SiC}N pEAtV 

A. General Information about the Pension Plans 

Plan ï~eseriptians 

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the City's separate Safety {Police) and Miscellaneous 
Employee Pension Plans, cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit plans administered by the California Public Employees' 
Retirement System ~CaIPERS). 4enefit provisions under the Plans are established by State statute and City resolutí©n. CaIPERS issues 
publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding benefit previsions, assumptions and membership 
information that can be found on the CaIPERS' website. 



~~T~ ~F ~R~~F#~~~ 

NOTES TC} BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 3fl, 2fl21 

N{JTE 11— PENSItàl1~ PLAN ~C©ntinued~ 

A. general InfarmatÍon about the Persian Plans {Continued 

Benefits Provided 

CaIPERS pravÍdes service retirement and disability benefits, annual cast of living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who 
must be public employees and beneficïaries. Benefits are based an years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. 
Members with five years of fatal service are eligible to retire at age Sfl with statutorily reduced benefits. A11 members are eligible for non-
duty disability benefits after 1fl years of servÍce. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor 
Benefit, ar the CJptional Settlement 2w C~eath BenefÍt. The cast of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public 
Employees` Retirement haw. 

The Plans' provisions and benefits in effect at June 3fl, 2fl21, are summarized as follows an the fallowing page: 

Miscellaneous 

Prior to Can or after 
Hire Gate January 1, 2413 January 1, 2413 
Benefit formula 2 % @ 55 ~1 ~ f 2 
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 

Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life 

Retirement age 54-53 52-67 

Monthly benefits, as a 1 of eligible compensation 1.4251-2.418°' 1.41 to 2.5% 
Required employee contribution rates 71 5.751 

Required employer contribution rates 1fl.4841 + $175,414 7.7321 + $5,122 

Safety 

Police Fire 

Prior to {fin or after Prior to (Jn or after 

hire bate January 1, 2413 January 1, 2íJ13 January 1, 2413 January 1, 2413 
Benefit formula 2 /o @ 54 2.71 @ 57 2%a @ 54 2.7°/© (~ 57 

Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service 

Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life 

Retirement age 54-55 54-57 54-55 5fl-57 

Monthly benefits, as a lQ ©f eligible compensate©n 2.4 /o t© 2.71 2.4/Q t© 2.71 2.41 to 2.71 2.41 to 2.7/0 

Required employee Contribution rates 91 13.44% 91 13.441 
Required employer contribution rates 1$.1521 + $174,211 13.4441 + X14,324 24.585°l©+ $12,759 13.4441 + $1,377 

Contributions 

Section 2fl814(cj of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requires that the employer contribution rates for all public 
employers be determined an an annual basis by the actuary and steal! be effective on July 1 following notice of a charge in the rate. 
Funding contributions for the Plans are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 3fl by CaIPERS. The actuarially determined 
rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the casts of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount 
to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The City is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and 
the cantributian rate of employees. Contributions to the pension plan from the City during the ~fl2fl-21 fiscal year were $428,275 for the 
miscellaneous plan and 7flfl,997 far the safety plan. 
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CITY OF ~EENFIEI.[~ 
NOTES TCf BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2021 

NOTE 11—PENSION PLAN {C©ntinuedj 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and deferred Ctutflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2021, the City reported a liability of $2,594,751 for the miscellaneous plan and $3,032,839 for the safety plan for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020 and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pensien liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019 rolled forward to June 
30, 2020 using standard update procedures. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's 
long-term share of contributions to the pensien plan relative to the projected contributions of all pension plan participants, actuarially 
determined. At June 30, 2421, the City's proportionate share of the net pensien liability for each Plan as of June 30, 2019 and June 30, 
2020 was as shown below: 

Proportion-June 30, 2019 

Proportion-June 30, 2020 

Change-Increase {C~ecrease) 

It~~swellaneeus Safet~e 

0.05915°~ 0.04293°l~ 

0.05152% 0.04552 ~ 

~ +~~ .~~~ ~ ~~ ~~,  

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the City recognized pension expense of $1,355,091. Pension expense represents the change in 
the net pension liability during the measurement period, adjusted for actual contributions and the deferred recognition of changes in 
investment gain/'loss, actuarial gainJloss, actuarial assumptions or method, and plan benefits. At June 30, 2021, the City reported 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension from the sources on the following page: 

C~eferred Outflows deferred Inflows of 

of Resources Resources 

©ifferences between expected and actual experience 358,897 $ - 

Changes in assumptions - 28,518 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 

retirement plan investments 142,998 - 

Changes in proportïon and differences between City 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 95,387 27,354 

Adjustment due to differences ïn proportion 279,527 - 
City contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,129,272 - 

$ 2,017,081 $ 55,974 

C~eferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources above represent the unamortized portion of changes to net pensien 
liability, to be recognized in future perrods ~n a systematic and rational manner. 

X1,129,272 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City contributions subsequent tv the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2022. 

tither amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in 

the pension expenses as follows: 

Fiscal year Ending June 30, Amount 
2022 ~ 255,780 

2023 303,194 

2024 201,853 

2025 59,998 

831,835 

,~ • 



CITY OF GREENFIELD 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2021 

NOTE 11—PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

B. Pension Li_a_bilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the actuarial assumptions on the following 

page: 

Valuation Date 

Measurement Date 

r-~~~uài'iai ~.vS~ iviC~iivu 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

Discount Rate 

Inflation 

Payroll Growth 

Projected Salary Increase 

Investment Rate of Return 

Mo rta I  i  ty 

Miscellaneous 

June30,2019 

J u n e 30, 2020 

EÏ Í I( Y-AgC ÍV Vf~f 1ÍclÍ I.VJI ÍVÍe t(lÚÚ 

7.15 

2.50% 

3.00% 

Varies by Entry Age and Service 

7.00 

Derived using CaIPERS' Membership 

Data for all Funds (1) 

Safety 

June 30, 2019 

J u n e 30, 2020 
r.._ a.._ . n r ~ ._ ..._ _ _ 1 ~` _ _1  A R ~.L_ -- -~ 
C(Ilt~/-HgC IVUf ITldl l,USI tVIeIIIVU 

Derived using CaIPERS' Membership 

Data for all Funds (1) 

7.15 

2. SO% 

3.00% 

Varies by Entry Age and Service 

7.00 

(1) The mortality table used was developed based on CaIPERS' specific data. The table includes 15 years of mortality improvements 

using Society of Actuaries Scale 90% of Scale-MP 2016. For more details on this table please referto the December 2017 

experience study report. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be 

used in the calculation of a discount rate for public agency plans (including PERF C), CaIPERS stress tested plans that would be most likely 

to result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing of the plans, the tests 

revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the current 7.15 percent discount rate is appropriate and the use of the municipal 

bond rate calculation is not deemed necessary. The long-term expected discount rate of 7.15 percent is applied to all plans in the Public 

Employees Retirement Fund, including PERF C. The stress test results are presented in a detailed report called "GASB Crossover Testing 

Report" that can be obtained at CaIPERS' website under the GASB 68 section. 

CaIPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptíons as part of its regular Asset Liability Management (ALM) review cycle that is 

scheduled to be completed in February 2022. Any changes to the discount rate will require Board action and proper stakeholder 

outreach. For these reasons, CaiPERS expects to continue using a discount rate net of administrative expenses for GASB No. 67 and No. 68 

calculations through at least the 2021-22 fiscal year. CaIPERS will continue to check the materiality of the difference in calculation until 

such time as they have changed their methodology. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using abuilding-block method in which best-

estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net pension plan investment expense and inflation) are 

developed for each major asset class. 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CaIPERS took into account both short-term and long-term market return 

expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds' asset classes, expected compound 

returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using abuilding-block approach. Using the 
expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits were calculated for each fund. The expected 

rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash 

flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the 

single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent. 

C~~ 



CITY C3F ~REEN~iELi~  
NATES  T{  BANC  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2021 

NC3TE 11 — PENS1GiN PLAN ~Continued~ 

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred t~utflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions ~Continued~ 

The table on the following page reflects the Iong-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated using 
the capital marl~et assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These geometric rates of return are net of 
administrative expenses. 

New 

Strategic Real Return Real Return 

Asset Mass Allocation Years 1-1o{a} Years ~.~.+b~ 

cSlobal Equity 56:0©~° ~.BB©~ 5_~8~/ 

global Fixed Income 28.0°r~ 1.001 2.621 

Inflation Sensitive D.o°~ CJ.771 1.81° 

Private Equity 8.01 6.301 7.23°° 

Real Estate 13.01 3.751 4.~3°,~ 

Liquidity 1.0°l o.C~oi'© -0.921 

Total 100.01 

~a) An expected inflation of 2.001 was used for this period. 

(b} An expected inflation of 2.92°~ was used for this period. 

Sensitivity of the Pr©~srti©Hate S~aare of tf~e Ivet Pension Liability to ~f~anges in Discount Rate 

The following represents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.15 percent, as 
well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one 
percentage point lower (6.1.5 percents or one percentage paint higher X8.15 percent) than the current rate: 

I~ïiscellaneous safety 

1°,~ Decrease 6.151 6.151 

Net Pension Liability ~ x,054,106 $ 4,745,233 

Current Discount Date 7.15°~ 7.15°r° 

Net Pension LIabll~ty $ 2,594,761 3,032,839 

11 Increase 8.151 8.15° 

Net Pension Liability $ 1,388,950 $ 1,627,657 

Pension Pfan Fiduciary 1Vet Position 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CaIPERS' financial reports. 

C. Payable to the Pension Plan 

At June 30, 2021, the City had no amount outstanding for contributions to the pension plan required for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2021. 
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C#TY OF REENFlEL.D 
NE~TES Tt~ BASF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2021 

NOTE 12 — #.IARILITY, WORKERS' COMPENSATION, AND PURCHASED INSURANCE 

A. C}escription of Self-Insurance Pool Pursuant to Joint Powers Agreement 

The City of Greenfield is a member of the Monterey Bay Area Self Insurance Authority (Authority). The Authority is composed of 
10 California public entities and is organized under a joint powers agreement pursuant to California Government Code §0500 et. 
seq. The purpose of the Authority is to coordinate and administer programs for the pooling of self-insured losses, to purchase 
excess insurance or reinsurance, and to arrange for group purchased insurance for property and other lines of coverage. 

B. Self-Insurance Programs of the Authority 

general Liability—The City isself-insured for the first X10,000 of each liability claim. Claims above $10,000 up to ~1 million are 
paid by the Authority. Claims above $1 million are covered by California Affiliated Risk Management Authorities, purchased by 
the Authority. 

Vttar~ers' Car~apensa~ion --The City does not retain aself-insured portion of workers° compensation claims. Annual premiums for 
coverage up to statutory levels are paid to the Authority based on the level of claims activity. A third party administrator is 
contracted by the Authority to manage claims activity. 

C. Purchased Insurance 

Pr©perty tn
"
surc~nce —The City purchases all risk property coverage through a commercial insurance agency. The program limit is 

1, 000, 000, 000 . 

! ~ ~ ~- • . +~ ' • • +r 

[wring the past three fiscal {claims] years, none of the above programs of protection have had settlements or judgements that 
exceeded pooled or insured coverage. There have been no signifïcant reductions in pooled or insured liability coverage from 
coverage in the prior físcal year. 

NOTE 13 — C+DNTINGEl~~~IFS A~!~!~+ ~r-r-~L~~IMITME^"~S 

A. ~.e~al 

The City is involved in various litigations. In the opinion of management and legal counsel, the dïsposition of all litigation 
pending will not have a material effect on the City's financial statements. 

B. Grant Pro r 

The City has received State and Federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies. 
Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under terms of the grants, it is believed that any required 
reimbursements will not be material. 

C. Construction and Other Significant Commitments 

There were no construction contingencies as of June 30, 2021. 

NOTE 14 —REVENUE #.IMITATIONS IMPOSED BY CALIFORNIA PROPOSITION 218 

Proposition 218, which was approved by the voters in November 190f, regulates the City's ability to impose, increase, and extend taxes, 
assessments, and fees. Any new, increased, or extended taxes, assessments, and fees subject to the provisions of Proposition 218, 
require voter's approval before they can be implemented. Additionally, Propositíon 218 provides that these taxes, assessments, and fees 

are subject to the voter's initiative process and may be rescinded in future years by the voters. 
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~ITY C)~ ~REEt~~IE~.E3 
I~C3TES TCJ BASIC FIiVANCIAL STATEMEI~JTS 

June 3ú, 2422 

Nt~TE 15 - ~UC~ESSt.~R A~EN+EY 

A. 2416 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds 

Can January 27, 2426, the Successor Agency issued $27,915,444 in Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds at interest rates ranging from 
3.625 to 6.4 percent. The proceeds of the bends were used to refund the 2442 and 2446 Tax Allecatïen Bands. The refunding 
was completed to realize net present value savings related to the prier bonds. Principal payment will be due each February 1, 
commencing in February 2417. Interest will be payable semiannually en August 1 and February 2 each year. The bends mature 
in 2436. 

The refunding resulted in an overall debt service savings of $5,435,748, and the net present value of the debt service savings, 
called an economic gain, amounted to X3,878,147. 

Can January 27, 2416, the Successor Agency deposited $1,323,249 for the 2442 Tax Allocation Bands in an irrevocable trust with 
an escrow agent to provide funds for the future debt service en the refunded bonds. The ZÚ42 Tax Allocation Bonds were then 
paid in full from the escrow account on August 1, 2416. 

As of June 3ú, 2422, the principal balance outstanding was $14,264,4úg. 

The future minimum payment obligation for the bonds payable at June 34, 2421, are as fellows: 

Fiscal Year 

Ending 
., „ 

2422 $ 885, Qg4 $ 535, 581 $ 1, 42Q, 581 

2Q23 9Qü, QC~ 5Q9, 431 1, 4Q9, Q31 

2Q24 ~~, ~ 473, 431 1, 333, Q31 

2Q25 79Q, QQQ 438, 631 1, 228, 631 

ZQ26 74Q, Q~ 4Q7, 431 1,147, Q31 

2Q27- 2Q31 4,15Q, Q~ 1, 426, 8Q5 5, 576, 8Q5 

ZQ32-2Q36 5,935, 52Q,143 6,455,143 

$ 14, 26Q, Qt~O $ 4, 31Q, 253 ~ 18, 57Q, 253 

B. Changes in ~.on~-Term liabilities 

bong term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 34, 2úZ1, was as follows: 

Balance Balance Due Within 

2Q16 Tax Allocation Bands $ 15,155,000 - $ 895,QQQ $ 14,260,QQQ $ 885,QQfl 

Add: Band premium 1,Q58,4í3 - 67,922 99Q,541 67,923 

,{7 .Ltl,L1J,YVJ .Y7 - ~7 ,JVL,JLL .i,7 1J,LJV,J't1 .1.7 JJL,,.lLJ 

~~ 



~~~~ ~~ G~~L~F~~~~ 

NOTES Tc~ BASIC FINANCIAL STATEI~íiENTS 
June 3~, 2C}21 

Nt~TE 1~►  — PRIER-PERIOQ AQ~lUSTMEIUTS 

The City made the f©flowing prior-period adjustments: 

Statement of Activities Fund Statements 
Governmental Business-type Governmental Proprietary 

Activities Activities Funds Funds 

Governments! Activities: 
Capital assets, net Q#activity in Internal Service Fund $ 1,385,914 $ - $ - $ - 

Governmental Funds: 

General Fund 

Qi#ference between the amount recorded as accounts payable in prier 
#fiscal year and the actual amount paid in the current #fiscal year. (33,3©1) - (33,31) - 

Proprietary Funds: 

Water Fund 
Correction to match the general ledger balance to the balances in 
the #fixed asset module. - X194,835) - ~1ü4,835) 

Sewer Fund 
Correction to match the general ledger balance to the balances in 
the #fixed asset module. - 4,851 - 4,851 

Internal Service Fund  

Ta  account #or activity allocated to the new Internal Service Fund #ar 
the prier #fiscal year that was not reported in the financial statements. ~629,49~) - - (~29,49(J) 

$ 723,123 {99,984) $ X33,391) $ (729,474) 
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CITY Q1= ~REEiUFIEID 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEC}tJLE C)F REVENUES, EXPEN©ITURES, ANQ CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AN©ACTUAL 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 34, 2421 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Ftrrr-Icrc~te~r1 1~mnr rntc PdSitive 

REVENUES 

Taxes and assessments $ 7,493,714 7,292,714 $ 5,767,292 $ (1,525,422} 

Licenses and permits 444,723 544,723 648,925 144,242 

Fines and penalties 29,474 19,474 1,911 X17,159} 

Use of money and property 11,22Cí 11,224 8,38E {2,834} 

Intergovernmental revenues 92,694 492,453 495,494 3,1137 

Charges far SerVICeS 2,$39,477 3,©45,577 3,258,948 213,331 

Qther revenues 28,424 38,424 146,347 148,327 

Total revenues 14,538,514 11,443,777 14,327,259 (1,476,518} 

EXPEN ©ITURES 

Current: 

General government 3,847,197 3,848,618 3,634,211 214,447 

Public works 269,279 269,279 61,857 247,422 

Building and planning ?75,452 776,941 1,661,439 X884,538} 

Parks and recreation 594,546 668,785 4$8,343 184,442 

Public safety 3,643,184 3,672,684 2,797,255 875,429 

Streets and reads 465,361 466,253 366,891 99,362 

Housing - 461,996 178,474 283,526 

Total expenditures 9,594,979 14,164,516 9,188,466 976,454 

Excess of revenues aver (under} 

expenditures 943,535 1,239,261 1,138,793 X144,468} 

~3TMER FtNANCINt~ St)URCES 

Transfers in 541,240 541,244 - X541,244} 

Transfers out (1,428,586} {1,428,586) - 1,428,586 

Total ether financing sources (487,386} X487,386) - 487,386 

Net change in fund balance 456,149 751,875 1,138,793 386,918 

Fund balance, beginning of fiscal year 5,143,186 5,143,186 5,143,186 - 

Prior-period adjustment - - (33,341} {33,341} 

Fund balance, beginning of fiscal year 

- restated 5,143, 286 5,143,186 5,469,885 X33, 341 j 

Fund balance, end of fiscal year $ 5,559,335 5,855,461 6,248,678 $ 353,617 
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CITY ~~ GREENI=IEL[~ 
NOME GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

SCHEDULE ©F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUN© BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3fl, 2fl21 
Variance with 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Positive 
original Final Actual Amounts (Negative 

REVENUES 

Use of money and property $ - $ - $ 667 $ 667 

Charges for services - - 14,550 14,5Sú 

Total revenues - - 15,217 15,217 

EXPEN ©ITURES 

Current: 

Community development - - - - 

Total expenditures - - - - 

Net change in fund balance 15,217 15,217 

Fund balance, beginning of fiscal year 148,115 148,115 148,115 - 

Fund balance, end of fiscal gear 148,115 $ 148,115 $ 163,332 $ 15,217 

m 



C17Y tF t~REEN~lE1.D 
TRAFFIC IMPACT FUND 
SCHEDULE QF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Fiscal Year Ended tune 30, 2021 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Positive 
C)riginal Final Actual Amounts {Negative] 

REVENUES 
Use of money and property $ - $ - $ 1ú,C}43 1o,C)43 

Charges for services - - 146,~i4o 14~3,64C) 

Total revenues - - 158,683 158,E83 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Public works - - - - 

Total expenditures - - - - 

Net change in fund balance - - 156,663 156,683 

Fund balance, beginning of fiscal year 3,90)1,370 3,9ú1,37G 3,9C)1,37C) - 

Fund balance, end of fiscal year ~ 3,901,37© $ 3,901,370) $ 4,060,©53 $ 158,683 
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L~ V~ ~R~~IV`~~~~ 

GENERAL FACILITIES IMPACT FURL© 
SCHEDULE CJF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2x21 
Variance with 

Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Positive 
original Final Actual Amounts {Negative) 

REVENUES 
Use of money and property $ - - $ 14fl ~ 14fl 
Charges for services - - 27,281 27,281 

Total revenues - - 27,421 27,421 

EXPEN©iTURES 
Caoital outlay - - - - 

Total expenditures - -- - - 

Net change in fund balance - - 27,421 27,421 

Fund balance {deficit), beginning of fiscal year {1,889,912) {1,889,912) {1,889,912) - 

Fund balance {deficit), end of fiscal year $ {1,889,912) {1,889,912) $ {1,862,491) $ 27,421 
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CITY C}~ ~F~EEiV~tEL.[~ 
HtJU51NG FUN© 
SCHEDULE c)F REVENUE5, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3D, 2Q21 
Variance with 
Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Positive 

original Final Actual Amounts 4Negative) 

REVENUES 
Use of money and property $ 1,So~ $ 1,SOQ $ 19,546 $ 18,©46 

Total revenues 1,500 1,Sú4 69,546 68,©46 

EXPEN©~TURES 
Current: 

Community development - - - - 

Total expenditures - - - - 

Net change in fund balance 1,500 1,SQ~l 69,546 68,446 

Fund balance, beginning of fiscal year 995,624 995,624 995,624 - 

Fund balance, end of fiscal year $ 997,124 $ 997,124 $ 1,65,174 $ 68,046 
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CITY ~F ~REENFIE1.d 
SUPPLEMENTAL TRANSACTIONS AND USE TAX FUND 

SCHEDULE 4F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

Far the Fiscal Year Ended June 3~, 2Q21 
Variance with 

Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts Positive 

+Uriginal Final Actual Amounts Negative} 

REVENUES 

Taxes and assessments ~ 2,750,000 $ 2,750,000 2,924,760 $ 174,760 

Use of money and property - - 1,975 1,975 

Total revenues 2,750,000 2,750,000 2,926,735 176,735 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 

Parks and recreation 208,349 208,349 217,529 {9,184j 

Community development 271,849 272,109 71,440 244,669 

Publlc safety 3,176,112 3,196,112 2,877,986 318,126 

Total expendltureS 3,656,274 3,676,574 3,166,955 549,615 

Net change in fund balance 4906,270} (926,570) {240,220 686,350 

Fund balance, beginning of fiscal year 1,819,390 1,819,390 1,819,390 - 

Fund balance, end of fiscal year 913,120 $ 892,820 $ 1,579,170 686,350 
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~tTY E~~ GREENFtE1.© 
FIRE FUN© 

SCHEQULE OF REVENUES, EXPEN©iTURES, ANa CHANGES IN FUN© BALANCE 

BUDGET ANa ACTUAL 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 
Variance with 

Final Budget 

Budgeted Amounts P©sitive 

Original Final Actual Amounts ~Negative~ 

REVENUES 

fiaxes and assessments $ 913,000 $ 913,000 $ 1,174,772 ~ 261,772 

©ther revenues - - 11,654 11,654 

Total revenues 913,000 913,000 1,186,426 273,426 

EXPEN©tTURES 

Current: 

Public safety 1,851,678 1,848,778 1,763,243 85,535 

Total expenditures 1,851,678 1,848,778 1,763,243 85,535 

Net change in fund balance ~938,678~ {935,778} X576,817) 358,961 

Fund balance 4defícit~, beginning of fiscal year {910,045) ~910,045j {910,045 - 

Fund balance ~deftc~t), end ©f fisca l year {1,848,723 {1,845,823) $ {1,486,862) $ 358,961 
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CITY C)F ~REENFIEL[~ 
CHEI~ULE (~F PRtJPC)RTICJNATE BHARE CAF DIET PE~ISIC~1~1 LIABILITY 

Last ~ ~ Years 
As ©f June 3~, 202 

The following table provides required supplementary information regarding the City's Pension Plan. 

Proportion of the net pension liability 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 

Covered payroll 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as 

percentage of covered payroll 

Plan's total pension liability 

Plan's fiduciary net position 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability 

~aa~ ~c~~c~ ~c~~ ~ ~a~ s 
0.45172°l° 4.44927°l° 4.44745°l° 9.04694°l° 

~ ~, 627, 644 ~ 5, 448, 823 $ 4, 533, 62 ~ ~ 4, 65 ~, 302 

$ 5, 686, 743 $ 4, 353, 466 ~ 3, 518, 994 $ 3, 265, 299 

98.96°l° 115.97°l° 128.83°l° 142.45°l° 

~ 43, 742, 934, 887 ~ 41, 426, 453, 489 ~ 38, 944, 855, 364 $ 37,161, 348, 322 

$ 32, 822, 541, 335 ~ 31,179, 414, 067 ~ 29, 348, 589, 559 ~ 27, 244, 495, 376 

75.14°l° 75.26°l© 75.26°l° 73. 31 °lo 

2t~~ 7 2ü16 ~{~~ ~ 

Proportion of the net pension liability 9.04679°l° 4.04668% 4.05927°l° 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability ~ 4,448,963 3,244,311 ~ 3,128,446 

Covered payroll $ 2, 635, 921 2, 393, 628 2, 584, 718 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as 

percentage of covered payroll 153.81 °l° 133.87°l° 121.43°l© 

Plan's total pennon I~abElity $ 33,388,627,824 31,771,217,442 ~ 39,829,966,831 

Plan's fiduciary net position $ 24, 745, 532, 291 24, 947, 345, 871 24, 647, 542, 515 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 

total pension liability 74.44°l° 78.49°l° 79.82°l° 

N©tes td schedule: 
In 2418, inflation was changed from 2.75 percent to 2.54 percent and individual salary increases and overall payroll growth was 
reduced from 3.44 percent to 2.75 percent. 

In 2417, as part of the Asset Liability Management review cycle, the discount rate was changed from 7.65 percent to 7.15 percent. 

In 2416, the discount rate was changed from 7.5 percent {net of administrative expense} to 7.65 percent to correct for an 
adjustment to exclude administrative expense. 

In 2415, amounts reported as changes in assumptions resulted primarily from adjustments to 
expected retirement ages of general employees. 

*- Fiscal year 2415 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only seven years are shown 
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CITY C)F REENFiELM 
SCHEMULE CAF PENSION CC~NTRIBUTIt~N~ 
Last ~ U Years` 
As ©f June ~C}, 2a21 

The following table provides required supplementary information regarding the City's Pension Plan. 

!02~ 2t~19 2418 

968,743 $ 708,616 $ 639,408 Contractually required contribution {actuarially determined} 

Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined 

contributions 
Contribution deficiency {excess} 

Covered payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 

Contractually required contribution {actuarially determined} 

Contribution in relation to the actuarially determined 

contributions 
Contribution deficiency {excess} 

Covered payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 

Hates td Schedule: 

1,129,272 968, 743 ~: . . . • 4 ~: 
~~ 

$ 6,236,679 5,686,703 $ 4,353,466 $ 3,518,990 

18.11°f° 17.04°f° 15.2$°f° 18.17°f© 

582,791 515,413 440,014 

$ - $ - $ - 

$ 3,265,209 $ 2,635,921 $ 2,393,628 

17.85°f° 19.55°f° 18.38°f° 

Valuation pate: 6/3t~12414 

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal 
Asset valuation method 5-year smoothed market 

Amortization method The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is amortized 
over an open 17 year period as a level percentage 

of payroll. 

Miscount rate 7.50°f© 
Payroll growth rate 3.00°f° 
Price inflation 2.75°f° 
Salary increases 2.75°f° plus merit component based on employee 

classification and years of service 

Mortality Sex distinct RP-2000 Combined iVlortality 

projected to 2010 using Scale AA with a 2 year 

setback for males and a 4 year setback for 
females. 

Valuation Mate: 613412015 

Miscount Rate 7.65°f° 

Valuation Mate: 6130/2016 

Miscount Rate 7.375°f° 

Valuation Mate: 6/301201 ? 

Miscount Rate 7.15°f° 

Valuation Mate: 613012018 

Payroll growth rate 2.75°f° 

Price inflation 2.50°f° 

Miscount Rate: 7.00°f° 

~- Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only seven years are shown 
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION SECTION 



L~ ~~ ~IIEEN~IE~D 

NQNMAJ4R G©VERiVMENTAL FUiVDS 

C{~MBIIVING BALANCE SHEET 

June 34, 2421 

Special Revenue Funds 

Supplemental Law 

Enforcement Pol~Ce-©ther 

Service Fund Grants Fund Gas Tax Fund Park Impact Fund 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments $ 242,621 $ 33,868 $ 1,238,649 $ 604,254 

Accounts receivable 16,667 14,192 61,768 - 
Interest receivable 113 12 499 241 
Notes receivable - - - - 

Due from other funds 72,701 - 141,745 -  
i  ;d~i~í~.tn~+eà rt~.r i..i~v 5~,+blía~~. .• - - - 

Total assets 292,142 $ 48,472 $ 1,442,621 $ 644,495 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INI`LCiWS C)F RESOURCES, AND 1=UND BALANCES 

Liabilities 

Acc©ants payable $ - $ 4,813 $ 17,919 $ - 

Accrued payroll - - - - 

Due to other funds - - - - 

fiotal liabilities - 4,813 17,919 - 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Unavailable revenues - - - - 

Total deferred inflows of resources - - - - 

Fund Balances 

Restricted 292,142 43,259 1,384,742 644,495 

Unassigned - - - - 

Total fund balances (deficttS~ 292,142 43,259 1,384,742 644,495 

Total liabilities, deferred Inflows of res©Urces, 

and fund balances $ 292,142 $ 48,072 $ 1,442,621 $ 604,495 
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Special Revenue Funds 

Lexington 
Community Greenfield Square Terra Verde 

Police Impact Sewer Impact Center Impact Science Assessment Assessment 
Fund Fund Fund Workshop Fund Fund Fund 

$ - $ 1,323,026 $ 144,370 $ - $ 354,670 ~ 928,670 

- - - 10,600 - - 

- 517 58 5 142 370 

$ - $ 1,323,543 ~ 144,428 $ 10,605 $ 354,812 $ 929,040 

- $ 3,770 $ 2,835 $ 9,722 
- 1 f~ (l71 ~3~ 1 ~iFi 

!L,/V1 - - 115,546 3,755 1(3,648 

- 1,323,543 144,428 - 351,056 918,392 

{72,701) - - (104,941 - - 

~72,701) 1,323,543 144,428 (1034,942) 351,0356 918,392 

~ - $ 1,323,543 $ 144,428 ~ 10,605 $ 354,812 $ 929,040 

Continued 
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~~~ ~~ ~à~i~~Í~1~~~E~.Q 

N©NMAJtJR G{~VERNMEIUTAL FUN©S 

CC)MBIiUING BALANCE SNEET ~Continued~ 
June 30, 2021 

Special Revenue Funds 

SM©#1 Fund SM©#2 Fund Measure X Fund C©8G Fund 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments $ 420,924 $ 519,505 $ 869,747 $ 862,625 

Accounts receivable -  -  160,154 - 
Interest receivable 170 2úS 317 297 

Rotes receivable - - - 48,6Qú 

~u
I
e from other fu

~_

nds - - - - 
~id w/úÇ~ceCar re/"e~ vlt~ar~ile - - - - 

Total assets $ 421,©94 $ 519,71© $ 1,©3©,218 $ 911,522 

LIABILITIES, ©EFERRED IiUFLCJWS ©F RES©URGES, APí© FUN © BALANCES 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable $ 1,931 $ 2,842 $ - $ - 

Accrued payroll 921 916 - - 

~ue to other funds - - - - 

Total liabilities 2,852 3,758 - - 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Unavailable revenues - - - 48,6úú 

Total deferred inflows of resources - - - 48,6úú 

Fund Balances 

Restricted 418,242 515,952 1,03©,218 862,922 

Unassigned - - - - 

Total fund balances (deficits} 418,242 515,952 1,ú3ú,218 862,922 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, 

and fund balances 421,094 $ S19,71ú $ 1,ú3{a218 $ 911,522 
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Special Revenue Funds _. __ 

Asset 

FQrfeiture~ 

Seizure 

Fund Fire Impact Fund CSA - 74 Fund 

Debt Service 

Fund 

1At~tor Irnnart Ilc+ht Crar7iir~a 

T©tals 

~ 9,464 ~ 76,608 $ 14,728 $ 2,317,899 $ - $ 9,917,628 

15,130 - - - - 278,511 

3 31 5 1,358 - 4,343 
- - - - - 48, 600 

7 n~~ c~~ ~ ^~c~ n~~ 

Yr v—s,.✓.✓ ~ ,,,a rv,va .~ .r~ .t-t,~..~., y.a ,.~,—rv .i.,vsv ,~ .s,v—~..~,~i~ .~ a...~,s—r.r,.sv.~. 

$ 16,104 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 59,936 

- - - - - 13,755 

- - - - 1,108,186 1,282,592 

16,104 - - - 1,1©8,186 1,356,283 

- - - - - 48, 600 

- - - - - 48, 600 

8,493 76,639 14,733 3,~.01,878 535,086 11,922,140 

- - - - - (177,642) 

8,493 76,639 14,733 3,401,878 535,086 11,744,498 

$ 24,597 $ 76,639 ~ 14,733 $ 3,401,878 ~ 1,643,272 $ 13,149,381 

C©ncluded 
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~~~ ~~ GREENFIEE.D 
NC3NMAJC~R GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT 4F REVENUES, EXPENQITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUN© BALANCES 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 3©, 2421 

Special Revenue Funds 

Supplemental Law 

Enforcement P©lice-other 

Service Fund Grants Fund Gas Tax Fund Park Impact Fund 

REVENUES 

Taxes and assessments $ - $ - ~ - $ - 

Use of money and property 973 114 4,405 1,562 
Intergovernmental revenues 148,393 42,176 727,678 55,868 
Charges for services - - - - 

Total revenues 149,366 42,290 732,483 57,430 

EXPEN©ITURES 

Current: 

Public works - - - - 

Parksand recreation - - - - 

Public safety 15,568 18,124 - - 

Streets and reads - - 159,459 - 
Debt service: 

Principal - - - - 

Interest - - - - 

Total expenditures 15,568 18,124 159,059 - 

Net change in fund balances 133,798 24,166 573,424 57,430 

Fund balances {deficits, beginning of fiscal year 158,304 19,093 811,678 543,465 

Fund balances ~deficits~, end of fiscal year 292,142 43,259 $ 1,384,702 ~ 644,495 
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Special Revenue Funds 

Lexington 
Camrnunity Greenfield Square Terra Verde 

Police Impact Sewer Impact Center Impact Science Assessment Assessment 

Fund Fund Fund W©rksh4p Fund Fund Fund 

$ - $ - ~ - $ - ~ 141,497 $ 321,944 

- 3,961 366 {61~ 943 2,367 

43,552 354,948 9,461 181,662 - - 

43,552 358,869 9,427 1$1,601 142,400 324,271 

- - - - 76,198 260,435 

- - - 412,470 - - 

- - - 412,070 76,198 260,435 

43,552 358,869 9,427 {230,469~ 26,242 64,236 

{116,253~ 964,674 135,001 125,528 324,854 854,156 

$ {72,741~ ~ 1,323,543 ~ 144,428 $ {1©4,941} $ 351,056 ~ 918,392 

Continued 
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~~~ ~~ ~~E~N~~~~..d 

N~NMAJ(3R GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING STATEMENT 4F REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ANa CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (C©ntinued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Specie! Revenue Funds 

SMD #1 Fund SM©#2 Fund Measure X Fund CQBG Fund 

REVENUES 

Taxes and assessments $ 37,474 ~ 91,838 $ - $ - 

Use ©f meney and pr©party 1,030 1,389 3,153 9,885 

Interg®vernmenta! revenues - - 550,328 518,475 

Charges for services - - - 46,000 

T©tal revenues 38,504 93,227 553,481 574,360 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 

PUbl~c W©r1CS 28,043 28,416 - - 

Parks and recreat~an - - - - 

PUblic safety - - - - 

Streets and roads - - 19,831 - 

[3ebt service: 

Principal - - - - 
Interest - - - - 

T©tal expenditures 28,043 28,416 19,831 - 

Net change in fund balances 10,461 64,811 533,650 574,360 

Fund balances ~deficits~, beginning cif fiscal year 407,781 451,141 496,568 288,562 

Fund balances ~deficitsj, end cif fiscal year $ 418,242 515,952 1,030,218 ~ 862,922 
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(lc~ht C®rr~i~o  

Special Revenue Funds 

Asset 
Forfeiture/ 

Cc3i~e ern Water Impact Debt Service 
Fire Impact Fund CSA - 74 Fund Fund Fund Totals 

- $ - ~ - $ - ~ - $ 552,713 

23 183 64 8,822 - 39,139 

- - 12,872 - - 2,644,973 

- - - 305,773 - 351,773 

23 183 12,936 314,595 - 3,588,598 

- - - - - 392,692 

- - - - - 412,C}7ú 

- - - - - 33,692 

- - - - - 178,890 

- - - - 673,436 673,436 
- - - - 81,327 81,327 

- - - - 754,763 1,772,107 

23 183 12,936 314,595 ~754,763} 1,816,491 

,,a c~,~r~..~ ,a i ~,ti.~a1 ,a 1~, r .;~.~ ~ .a,~t~i,v ~ ca .,~ a.~..~,vc3v .~ .~.~, ~ ~r~t,it~tj  

Concluded 
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~I~ ~F ~1~~G~~I~~D 

COMBINING STATEMENT flF FIDUCIARY NET P~SITIC)N 
PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNDS 
dune 3~, 221 

Assets 

Cash and investments 
Interest receivable 

due from other Fund 
Prepaid insurance 

Total a~~~ts 

liabilities 

Accrued interest payable 
Unearned revenue 
Due to Other Fund 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year 
Due in mare than one year 

Total liabilities 

deferred inflow of Resources 

Deferred gain on debt refunding 

Total deferred inflow of resources 

Net Pa►sition 
Held intrust 

RDA 

RDA Successor 
Successor Agency 

Agency Debt  

Adorin  Fund Service Fund Total 

708,439 $ 7 ~ 708,446 

1,362 - 1,362 

2,937,©~~ - 2,937,a9ú 

- 127,024 127,024 

~ é:?I~ 4011 .,i,  V ~t , 421 t 17é d'121 a ~ s , e.J  ..i  .L 
~ 7é~ ~~7  rt, f J, ..d L L 

- 223,159 223,159 

735,491 - ?35,491 

- 2,937,090 2,937,090 

- 952,923 952,923 

735,491 1$,410,790 19,146,281 

- 150,419 150,419 

- 150,419 150,419 

$ 2,911,400 ~ {18,434,178} $ ~15,522,778} 
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CITY C~~ GREENFIELC~ 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANCES IN FI[~UCIARY NET POSITION 
PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUNC~S 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2(J21 

R©A 

RDA Successor 

Successor Agency 
Agency Debt 

Admin Fund Service Fund Total 
Additions: 

Taxes $ 1,708,662 ~ - 1,708,662 

Investment earningS 14,211 200 14,411 

Total additions 1,722,873 20© 1,723,©73 

~~~~ct~n~: 

Community development 4,906 - 4,90E 

Interest expense - 498,263 498,263 

Total deductions 4,906 498,263 503,169 

Change in net position 1,717,967 {498,063 1,219,904 

Total net position-beginning 1,193,433 (17,936,115 {16,742,682} 

Total net position-ending $ 2,911,400 $ {18,434,178) ~ {15,522,778] 
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